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INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this Annual Report is to provide Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association Ltd
(Lincs Rural) Shareholders and Stakeholders with concise information about the Association’s
Strategy, governance and prospects, in the context of its external environment over the short,
medium and long-terms. Also, to assess the performance of Lincs Rural and Board of
Management to complement, supplement and provide context for its Financial Statements.
The Annual Report does not purport to provide exhaustive detail, but concentrates on ‘material
information’ with signposts to further related issues.
The Annual Report for the Association has five principal components with the following
objectives:
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT REPORT: Provides other statutory and regulatory information
about the Association;
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN’S REPORT: Provides a summary of the auditing and
scrutiny work undertaken during the year;
INTEGRATED STRATEGIC REPORT: Provides the context for the Financial Statements and
an insight into the Association’s Strategy, main objectives and business model. It provides a
‘Value for Money Statement’, and describes the principal risks the organisation faces, and how
these could potentially influence future business performance. The Report this year includes
information on value creation, and the links and considerations between environmental, social
and governance issues (ESG);
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT: Provides an explanation of how the composition
and organisation of the Association’s governance structures supports the achievement of the
Corporate Strategy and Strategic Objectives; and
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: Presents the Association’s financial position, performance and
development in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice.
Note: A Board Member’s Remuneration Report is not provided as Non-Executive Members
are un-paid voluntary individuals. Travelling and other minor expenses are however
reimbursed.
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INFORMATION

Table 1 Membership of the Board of Management and Audit Committee during the financial
year 2019 / 2020
Period
of
Membership
remaining
years

Period
of
Membership
(yrs.)

First
Term
Election date
on the Board

Member

John Emerson

Board Member and Audit 5/09/13
Committee Member

6.5

2.5

Lesley Robinson

Board Chairman

15/09/16

3.5

5.5

Bob Culliford

Board Deputy Chairman 14/09/17
and Audit Committee
Member (October 2019)

2.5

6.5

Jean Pearce

Tenant

14/09/17

2.5

6.5

BSc Board Member and Audit 14/09/17
Committee Chairman

2.5

6.5

Robert
Anderson
(Hons), FCA, CTA
Michael Bann

Board Member

13/09/18

1.5

7.5

John Land

Board Member

13/09/18

1.5

7.5

Sally Cowling BSc (HONS), Independent
Committee
ACA, FHEA
Chairman

Audit 25/10/18
Deputy

David Bruce

Tenant Board Member 12/09/19
and Audit Committee
Member

0.5

8.5

Drew Cook

Board Member

12/09/19

0.5

8.5

Ridley Board Member

12/09/19

0.5

8.5

Hilary Tunmore – Co-opted Board
Member
for 12/12/19
election on 10/09/20

-

-

Xenia Stredwick – Co-opted Board
Member
for 12/12/19
election on 10/09/20

-

-

Professor Jeffrey
FIIA, FCIS, CIA

Kerry Stables

Independent
Audit 31/10/19
Committee member

Andrew Cotton FCIH

Deputy Board Chairman

John Howes FRICS

Chief
Executive
Company Secretary

4

Retired in September 2019

& Retired from the
November 2019

Board
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DocuSign Envelope ID: C71FF1CC-E0D6-4637-9B69-B7D4390E3975

INFORMATION

Table 2 Officers during the financial year 2019 / 2020
Joined Lincs Rural
John Howes FRICS

Andrew
DipSurvPract

Chief Executive & Company August 2001
Secretary

Haime Operations Manager

Michelle Turner ACMA, Head of Finance
CGMA

September 2007

July 2008

REGISTERED OFFICE - Markime House, Pooles Lane, Spilsby, Lincolnshire, PE23 5EY
LINCOLNSHIRE RURAL HOUSING ASSOCIATION IS A CO-OPERATIVE AND
COMMUNITY BENEFIT SOCIETIES ACT 2014 REGISTERED SOCIETY (PreCommencement Society – Charitable formerly I&P Society), WITH HOUSING ACT 1974
REGISTRATION (IP25276R), AND REGULATOR OF SOCIAL HOUSING REGISTRATION
NUMBER (L3698). [C30] [C41]

EXTERNAL AUDITORS - Beever and Struthers, Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors,
St George’s House, 215-219 Chester Road, Manchester, M15 4JE
INTERNAL AUDITORS - RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP, Suite A, 7th Floor, City Gate
East, Tollhouse Hill, Nottingham, NG1 5FS
PRINCIPAL SOLICITORS - Wilkin Chapman LLP, Cartergate House, 26 Chantry Lane,
Grimsby, DN31 2LJ
PRINCIPAL BANKERS - The Cooperative Bank, 4-5 Exchange Walk, Nottingham, NG1 2NX
OTHER FUNDERS
Svenska Handelsbanken AB
Orchardbrook Ltd
Yorkshire Bank
INSURERS
Housing JLT Specialty Ltd
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

The purpose of this report is to provide statutory and regulatory information concerning the
Association.
The Association was originally an Industrial and Provident Society (IP25276R) registered with
the Registry of Friendly Societies, and is an ‘Exempt Charity’ (included in Schedule 3 to the
Charities Act 2011). The Association is regulated by the ‘Regulator of Social Housing’ (RSH).
Under the Financial Services and Markets Act registration, powers and responsibilities were
transferred to the Financial Conduct Authority on 1 April 2013.
Following the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, organisations
registered as Industrial and Provident Societies (I&P Societies) under the 1965 Industrial and
Provident Societies Act prior to 1 August 2014, as Lincs Rural, are now referred to as ‘PreCommencement Society – Charitable (formerly I&P Society)’. Societies such as Lincs Rural,
who are not a co-operative society or a community benefit society, must exist for the benefit
of the community. From 6 April 2014 the ‘Company Directors Disqualification Act 1986’ was
extended to include Board members of Societies. Directors and Officers Liability Insurance is
maintained by the Association.
On the 16 November 2017 the Office for National Statistics (ONS) concluded that Registered
Providers of social housing in England, such as Lincs Rural, are private, market producers
and as such they were reclassified to the private non-financial corporations sub-sector for the
purpose of national accounts and other economic statistics.
In accordance with the Association’s Rules (September 2005 amended March 2006), the
Board of Management must approve each year’s accounts prior to publication (Rule D1.3).
The Board of Management approved the audited financial statements at the meeting held on
23 July 2020.
The Board’s approval of the financial statements takes account of Rule C17.1 and the Annual
General Meeting on 10 September 2020 to receive the Annual Report containing the:
(a) Statement of Comprehensive Income and Financial Position for the accounting period 1
April 2019 to 31 March 2020 (Pages 55 to 56) and the Auditor's Report (Beever and
Struthers) (Pages 52 to 54);
(b) Board's Report on the affairs, values and objectives of the Association Page 6 - 8, and in
Integrated Strategic Report Pages 10 to 45);
(c) Statement of the current obligations of Board Members to the Board and the Association
(Page 19);
(d) Statement of the skills, qualities and experience required by the Board amongst its
Members (Pages 23 & 24); and
(e) The Policy for admitting new Shareholders (Page 25).
Rule F12 requires that every year, within the time specified by legislation, the Secretary must
send the Association's annual return to the Financial Conduct Authority. The annual return
must be accompanied by the Auditor’s Reports, for the period of the return and the financial
statements to which it refers.
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

The Legal Requirements
In accordance with section 128 of the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 the Association,
as a Registered Provider registered with the Regulator of Social Housing, must submit its
Annual Accounts and Auditor's Report (bearing the Auditor’s signature) within six months of
the end of the period to which they relate. If it fails to do so, without reasonable excuse, the
Association (and every responsible person directly concerned with the conduct and
management of its affairs) may be guilty of an offence and could be prosecuted by the
Regulator.
The Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income must be
completed in accordance with the relevant legislation for the constitutional structure and in line
with the Rules and governing instruments of the Association (summarised above). The date
approved by the Board must be included and signed on behalf of the Board by at least two
Board Members and the Secretary.
While accounts must have been approved by the Board, there is no need for the accounts to
have been received by an Annual General Meeting (AGM) prior to submission to the
Regulator.
Governance and Financial Viability Standard Annual Compliance Statement
The Regulator’s ‘Governance and Financial Viability Standard’ and ‘Code of Practice’ took
effect from 1 April 2015 to protect social housing assets and public value. The Standard
requires that effective governance arrangements are ensured that deliver the organisations
aims, objectives and intended outcomes for Tenants and potential Tenants in an effective,
transparent and accountable manner. It also requires the management of resources effectively
to ensure their viability is maintained, while ensuring that social housing assets are not put at
undue risk.

Paragraph 30 of the HCA Code: Expectations about assets and liabilities – requires the Board
to ‘Understand housing assets and security position, and have swift access to this information
readily available.
The Association maintains an Asset and Liability Register which is a list with hyperlinks of
where information can be found, for example, the property portfolio listing property details,
loans, rent charges etc.
Fraud - During the year there have been no incidences of fraud or theft reportable in
accordance with legislation or regulation.
The Board confirms that it complies with the RSH’s Governance and Viability Standard
following self-assessment on 12 March 2020.

7

DocuSign Envelope ID: C71FF1CC-E0D6-4637-9B69-B7D4390E3975

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

The Auditor’s Management Letter must be submitted with the relevant accounts, or as soon
as possible afterwards.
A copy of the latest set of accounts is placed on the Regulator's statutory Public Register.
Members of the public can access the Statutory Public Register by contacting the Referrals
and Regulatory Enquiries Team is enquiries@rsh.gov.uk Tel: 0300 124 5225.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Management: ………………………………………….
Lesley Robinson LLB Law
Chairman of the Board of Management

03.08.2020

Date
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AUDIT COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN’S REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

The Board appointed Audit Committee met three times during the year, as appropriate to the
reporting and audit cycle, to receive and monitor assurance and performance reports from the
Association’s Leadership Team and appointed independent Internal and External Auditors,
including statements on the quality assurance of audit processes.
At the financial year end the Committee had a full membership of six Members, two being
Independent of the Board of Management (the Board). Two Members have recent and
relevant financial experience, being one Board and One Independent Member. The only
change was the recruitment of one Independent Member into the vacant position. One Board
Member on the Committee is a Tenant of the Association, providing engagement and scrutiny
compliance [C34]. The Chairman also presented the Committee’s Annual Report to the AGM
on 12 September 2019.
One of the key roles of the Audit Committee is to provide challenge and scrutiny to the
Leadership Team, and assurance to the Board. During our annual effectiveness review, and
from feedback following meetings, we have been able to demonstrate a high level of scrutiny
and challenge throughout the year. This has allowed us to provide effective monitoring and
feedback for the Board through minutes, delivered reports and recommendations and reviews.
The Committee’s terms of reference include keeping under review the Association’s corporate
governance practices and compliance with relevant laws and regulatory standards. At the
Committee meeting on 23 April 2020, satisfactory reports from the independent Internal
Auditor was received, the overall opinion was that the Association had an adequate and
effective framework for risk management, governance and internal control. The External
Auditors confirmed, as detailed in their audit report, that there are no materially misstated
balances in the financial statements. They reported in their Management Letter to the Board
that there are no material financial control weaknesses identified in the control systems they
reviewed in their work to support their audit opinion.
The Audit Committee is satisfied from the results of its monitoring activities that the Board and
Leadership Team are fully aware of their governance responsibilities and the Regulatory
Standards and have adopted practices to comply with these.

Signed on behalf of the Audit Committee:

………………………………………….

Robert Anderson BSc (Hons), FCA, CTA
Audit Committee Chairman
10.08.2020

Date
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INTEGRATED STRATEGIC REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

Lincs Rurals Value Creation’ in 2019 / 2020
The purpose of this Integrated Strategic Report is to provide the context for the Financial
Statements, and an insight into the Association’s Strategy, main objectives and business
model. It provides a ‘Value for Money Statement’, and describes the principal risks the
organisation faces, and how these could potentially influence future business performance.
The Report this year includes information on value creation, and the links and considerations
between environmental, social and governance issues (ESG).
The Report progresses the Board’s decision to implement greater clarity and detail to
Stakeholders using Integrated Thinking and Reporting. The order of the report however
has been changed in this instance.
Housing associations social impact is significant. The need to scale up the supply of
new genuinely affordable homes is clear. Investor interest is strong and growing.
However, there is an increasing need for the UK social housing sector to clearly
highlight and report on its strong Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
performance. Sections 1 to 5 uses the new reporting frameworks being developed by
the White Paper ‘UK SOCIAL HOUSING: Building a sector Standard Approach for ESG
Reporting’, commencing with Governance, which is central to the success or failure of
organisations. The figures in square brackets [xxx] are a cross reference with the set
of themes the White Paper has developed to align with the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (SDG). The full criteria can be accessed at esgsocialhousing.co.uk .
REPORT CONTENTS
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11
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INTEGRATED STRATEGIC REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

Chairman and Chief Executive’s Introduction
Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association’s (Lincs Rural) overall objective is to be of benefit to
rural communities, which was the organisation’s founding principle in May 1986. This objective
remains the same 34-years on, despite the challenges and opportunities of change over time.
This Integrated Strategic Report examines how Lincs Rural has contributed social value, or
non-financial positive impacts on rural communities and people. The Integrated Strategic
Report this year improves clarity to Stakeholders on how Lincs Rural continues to deliver value
against its purpose. The report is designed around the increasingly used ‘Sustainable
Development Goals’ (SDG), and principles of Integrated reporting (<IR>). In considering
performance of the organisation, this report seeks to commence an improved consideration of
Lincs Rurals contribution to the environmental, social and economic well-being of the
communities it serves and the wider impact. The report further illustrates how links between
environmental, social and governance (ESG) needs integrate with strategy and decision
making.
The starting point is that housing associations are not just businesses based on brick and
mortar, but about providing access to adequate, safe and affordable housing. This has
become of significant importance and realisation during the COVID-19 pandemic. Having a
decent, affordable home has become increasingly seen as import to people’s health and wellbeing. Truly affordable social housing has a direct positive impact on education, assists people
into decent work, and can provide a route out of poverty. Lincs Rurals innovation and
commitment over many years has helped reduce energy consumption, provided affordable
energy, assisted with fuel poverty, and in a small way contributed to tackling climate change.
This has not come about by having worthy Policies, but a determined and active strategy that
has and will deliver over the long-term.
The Corporate Strategy 2019 to 2024 in Figure 1, directed by the Board of Management
(Board), and delivered by management, is the first driver to maximise the benefit that Lincs
Rural delivers. It defines the business model, which interacts with a changing and evolving
external operating environment. The results of financial and human resources are examined
with other business components, used in compliance with the regulatory and legal
environment.
Corporate Strategy performance and achievement are considered in this Report. Reference
to Tables 10, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18 and 19 indicate that all Strategic Objectives have been
achieved with the exception of ‘growth of housing stock’.
The ‘Governance Cycle’ in Figure 1a provides a structured approach for regular monitoring
and review of strategy performance, and risks that have the potential to affect delivery.
The Board last reviewed and amended the Corporate Strategy on 14 March 2019, in
consultation with Staff, taking account of trends and issues likely to affect the future operating
environment. Six key issues were identified as being key to future improvement and success:
Governance; Finance; Development; Maintenance; Tenants; and Employees.
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INTEGRATED STRATEGIC REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

Whilst the Vision and Mission remain the same, the Board’s Strategic Objectives for the next
five years are focusing on an effective strategy to deliver value for money whilst
sustaining financial viability. Growth of the housing stock was seen as a key objective,
but maintaining homes to a good standard would not be compromised. All Lincs Rural
properties exceed the Decent Homes Standard [C44], and overall Tenants
are the priority.
Lincs Rural delivers the majority of services with directly employed staff (i.e. finance, housing
management and customer services, maintenance and administration). Consultants and
contractors are engaged for other professional and specialist services (i.e. legal and gas
works).
Staff and Board Member calibre are critical to delivering the Values of being ‘Innovative,
Caring and achieving Excellence’. The Board acknowledges that achieving excellence was
not only reliant on a motivated and professional team (Board and Staff), but required sustained
staff performance to an extremely high standard. High performing governance was evidenced
in July 2019 through independent assessment by a previous Senior Regulator [C38],
equivalent to G1 / V1 [C42]. Lincs Rural also became one of just over 100 Platinum Investors
in People in the world during September 2019. This achievement demonstrates world class
processes being operated by world class people. It is testimony to both the governance and
management teams that this work and achievement was undertaken against a backdrop of
recruiting a new Chief Executive, and importantly sustaining traditionally high quality services
to Tenants.
Governance accountability, transparency, integrity and stewardship have been considered by
self-assessment against the adopted National housing Federation (NHF) Code of Governance
2015, and the Regulator of Social Housing (RSH) Regulatory Standards. Compliance against
these are seen as important benchmarks to maintain high performance, quality services to
Tenants, and protection of assets in the long-term, previously supported by public subsidy.
Delivery of Lincs Rurals Vision, Mission and Values during the financial year 2019 / 2020 has
taken account of risks and opportunities, and the value creation process summarised in Figure
2. The business model in narrative can be explained as: developing properties using grant,
loan finance and surpluses, rent generated services debt repayment and other business
activities such as finance/accountancy, maintenance, management and administration.
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INTEGRATED STRATEGIC REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

The year was predominantly dominated by politics and Brexit causing uncertainty and
extensive work preparing mitigation of potential risks. The planned and ‘known major change’
at the beginning of the financial year was to recruit and appoint a new Chief Executive.

Plans for succession had commenced in October 2018, with the objective being to hand over
Lincs Rural with proven, evidenced, high-performing governance and management to the new
Chief Executive. The Board appointed a new Chief Executive in February 2020 to commence
on 1 June 2020, however, acceptance of the position was withdrawn in mid- March 2020.
Recruitment will now re-commence later in 2020 year, with the current Chief Executive
continuing until a successor is appointed.

Governance and managements ambitions for 2019 / 2020 was continue to:
1. Be a highly-ranked sector provider exceeding regulatory requirements;
2. Have high-performing governance and management teams;
3. Remain as a small rural specialist and independent provider with the local knowledge
required to meet local needs;
4. Have very high levels of Tenant satisfaction;
5. Grow the stock of homes in a managed way within the resources available;
6. Have high social value and continue to reduce the carbon footprint of the housing stock
and reduce energy costs for Tenants to reduce fuel poverty.

Also, to remain:

1. Focused on continuous improvement to the quality of provision and outcomes for Tenants;
and
2. Resilient, adaptable and sustainable using internal and external expertise, and active
Stakeholder engagement by being digitally smarter.

Lesley Robinson

John D Howes FRICS

Chairman

Chief Executive & Secretary [C39]

Board of Management [C39]
13

DocuSign Envelope ID: C71FF1CC-E0D6-4637-9B69-B7D4390E3975

Figure 1 Corporate Strategy

Our Vision - Helping Sustain Rural Communities
Our Mission - To Provide Homes for Rural People in Need
Corporate Strategy 2019 to 2024

Our Principles

Our Purpose

Our People

GOVERNANCE
Effective strategy,
delivering value for money

DEVELOPMENT
Grow our housing stock

TENANTS
Tenants are our priority

FINANCE
Financially viable

MAINTENANCE
Maintain homes to a good
standard

EMPLOYEES
Motivated and professional
team

Our Values - Innovative, Caring and Excellence
Figure 1a
Governance Cycle
November
SWOT/
PESTLE

February
Business
Planning

March
Compliance /
Governance
Appraisal /
Budgets

July
Strategy
Review
Workshop /
Training
May
ICA Review
Business
Plan /
Accounts
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INTEGRATED STRATEGIC REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

An Overview of Lincs Rural
Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association (Lincs Rural) was formed on 22 May 1986 to work for
the benefit of the community. Lincs Rural’s primary business objective is ‘providing housing,
accommodation, and assistance to help house people and associated facilities and amenities
[for poor people or for the relief of aged, disabled, handicapped (whether physically or
mentally) or chronically sick people]. Also, any other [charitable] object that can be carried out
by a Society registered as a social landlord’ (Rule A2).
The Association does not trade for profit (Rule A3), and no financial or other benefits are paid
or transferred by way of profit to Shareholders of the Association (Rule A4).
The purpose of the Business Model is to maximise delivery of the Corporate Strategy and
‘Rule Objectives’ whilst sustaining long term viability and providing Value for Money (VfM).
The Model takes account of statutory and regulatory compliance and ensures existing debt
servicing and operating costs are sustainable.
The Business Model ensures existing properties are well maintained, whilst the development
and acquisition of additional affordable homes is maximised. Risk and performance
management is pivotal in business planning, and the Business Plan is subjected to regular
multivariate stress testing analysis [C43]. The Business Model’s expectation is ‘To provide
homes for rural people in need’, whilst ‘Helping Sustain Rural Communities’ i.e. the
Mission and Vision.
Housing for rent and shared ownership of properties are the two principal business streams.
The Association operates in small rural communities throughout Lincolnshire and in areas of
Rutland and Kings Lynn & West Norfolk. The geographical area of operation extends over
approximately 2500 square miles; its market place is demographic, being small rural
communities of less than 5000 population. The housing stock is predominantly new build, with
a small number of refurbished properties and two grade two listed cottages.
Lincs Rural is a rural specialist working with sensitively balanced communities. Growth in the
short, medium and long-term will be determined by small community needs and demands,
and the organisation’s financial capacity. Being an independent small specialist organisation,
the Association is able to provide an ‘Innovative, Caring and Excellent’ service for rural people
in housing need (the Association’s Values).
Lincs Rural has continued to provide quality affordable homes to over 1000 people and
received income of £2.2 million for investment back into services and local communities
throughout Lincolnshire, parts of Rutland, Kings Lynn and West Norfolk. The Association’s
income is predominantly from domestic property rent, with 14.5% (approx. £5,600 per week)
received directly from local government as housing benefit and universal credit. Income is also
received from feed-in tariffs for electricity generated by photovoltaic installations on Lincs
Rurals properties.

16
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INTEGRATED STRATEGIC REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

Performance was in the top quartile of the Sector in most of the key benchmarked areas, with
high achievement against the Corporate Strategy and Business Plan. At the end of the
financial year all properties were occupied. There were 30 re-lets during 2019/20, eight of
which incurred a void period of 16 weeks in total. This is again an outstanding achievement,
which year on year the Association is able to achieve with success. It is evidence that the use
of assets has been significantly maximised, particularly taking account of the rent collected.
Rent arrears at year end were 0.79%, again placing the Association amongst the highest
achievers in the sector during a period of increasing austerity and financial hardship.
Strategic Action ‘Assisting Tenants to sustain their tenancy’ was delivered as there were no
evictions during the year, evidencing achievement of Strategic Objective ‘Tenants are our
priority’.
The expected acquisition of a further twelve properties during 2019 / 2020 was not achieved
due to delays experienced by the developer. There were no opportunities at short notice to
ameliorate the lack of increasing the quantity of housing stock during the year.
There have been no issues for the Board to consider Lincs Rurals independence, based on
the benefit rural communities are provided by the Association. The Board is committed to
planning for and measuring in the long-term the benefit which the Association provides.
Table 3 Linc Rurals Regional Operating Area and mix of housing type [C2] [C3]:
LOCAL AUTHORITY
2 BED
3 BED
4 BED
%
with
Assured
Tenancy Agreements
General Needs
Boston Borough
East Lindsey
King’s Lynn & West Norfolk
North Kesteven
North Lincolnshire
Rutland
South Holland
South Kesteven
West Lindsey
TOTAL GENERAL NEEDS UNITS

24
81
8
34
26
7
39
11
7
237

12
54
0
14
13
6
26
32
4
161

0
1
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
2

Boston Borough

4

4

0

East Lindsey

3

3

0

North Kesteven

2

2

0

North Lincolnshire

7

0

0

West Lindsey

1

2

0

11
172

0
2

Shared Ownership

TOTAL SHARED OWNERSHIP UNITS
SUB TOTAL UNITS
TOTAL UNITS

17
254
428

17

94.50%
95%
87.50%
93.75%
92%
100%
98.50%
95.50%
82%
94.75% (21 – Starter
Tenancies)
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Lincs Rurals Market Context¹
The UK is in a housing crisis, and whilst this is an obvious statement, it is worth contextualising
this with research by the National Housing Federation (NHF) in September 2019. 8.4 m people
are affected by: overcrowding (3.6m); unable to afford rent or mortgage (2.5m); hidden
households (2.5m); unsuitable housing (1.7m); poor quality (1.5m) and are homeless or in risk
of becoming homeless (0.4m). The outcome of COVID-19 will most likely increase these
statistics.
Multiple factors have caused the housing crisis. Rapid population growth and increasing
number of households puts pressure in demand for housing. Bank and financial markets
lending policies have played a role in price inflation and how easy it is to buy a home. The UK
average house prices have risen much faster than wages, seriously impacting on affordability
of accessing housing. The lack of Government investment for new social housing and housing
benefit has declined over the last decades, influenced by a focus on home ownership.
Regulating housing providers has a critical role in meeting housing need, particularly for
vulnerable people and those who cannot afford to rent or buy in the private market. There is
an urgent need to increase the supply of quality affordable homes for those on low incomes.
In addition, major investment is needed to meet safety standards and zero carbon targets.
In the absence of previous Government grant levels enabling the large-scale delivery of
affordable social housing, there are emerging alternative sources of investment. Affordable
housing has multiple positive social and environmental impact. Large investors are looking for
investment opportunities with strong environmental, social and governance (ESG) credentials,
however these investors are moving beyond ESG towards Sustainable Development Goals
(SDG).
The UK social housing sector has strong social values, and a track record of measuring its
value creation. It has a tradition of building financially string business models driven by a social
purpose that is attractive to new investors such as pension funds.

¹ Extracts taken from the White Paper produced by ‘The Good Economy’ and other partners entitled ‘UK SOCIAL
HOUSING: Building a sector Standard Approach for ESG Reporting’.
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1. SECTION 1 - HUMAN RESOURCE AND GOVERNANCE – Corporate Strategy
Objective ‘Effective strategy, delivering value for money’(VfM)
High governance and management performance deliver effective strategy, VfM and top
quartile results, whilst achieving accountability, transparency, integrity and stewardship (Ref
Fig2). The following three metrics have been achieved during the financial year, which are
an internal measure of maintaining effective governance:
(a) An effective governance cycle with a minimum of 6 Board Meetings and 3 Audit Committee
Meetings per annum;
(b) Board attendance of at least 80%; and
(c) 90% achievement of the Board Skills and Experience Matrix (Ref Fig 4).
Compliance with regulation and legislation is a Strategic Action for delivering effective
governance strategy in the Corporate Strategy. The following six metrics have been achieved
during the year:
(a) Valid CP12 Gas certificate was held for all properties with gas at the end of March 2020
[C5];
(b) 100% properties had a current periodic electric inspection certificate and Energy
Performance certificate (EPC);
(a) Self-Assessment of Compliance with the Regulatory Standards and Code of Governance
(CoG) during the financial year 2019/2020 was undertaken by the Board on 12 March
2020. There was one area of reportable non-compliance for disclosure in this Annual
Report. The Association does not have a separate Remuneration Panel, in accordance
with CoG sections E5 and G4. Board and Audit Committee Members are not remunerated,
and the Board deals directly with Staff remuneration [C45];
(c) A positive annual internal audit opinion. The Internal Auditor presented the Annual Report
to the Audit Committee on 23 April 2020, which illustrated a very positive annual opinion.
The Report stated ‘The Association has an adequate and effective framework for risk
management, governance and internal control’;
(d) An External auditors unqualified audit opinion; and
(e) Overall compliance with health and safety legislation.
Board of Management Members during Year Ended 31 March 2020
Lincs Rural is governed by a Board of Management comprising of eleven voluntary nonremunerated, non-executive Members (92%), and one executive Member, 8% [C33]. At the
financial year end there was a full Board of Management, with 2/3rds being male, 1/3rd being
female. The average age of Members on the Board at 31 March 2020 was 57 years, with an
average tenure serving on Board of 2 years [C29]. The remaining average tenure is seven
years, which with the spread of skills and experience provides excellent strength of
governance in the medium term [C29]. There were two new co-opted Members during the
year (17%). Seven Members were recruited in the last two years (58%), due to: two Members
passing away; two retirements, the Chief Executive stepping off the Board, and the filling on
one vacancy. There have been no changes to the Leadership Team in the last two years
[C31]. The Association’s ‘Rules’ allow for Board Members to serve for three terms of three
years (nine years maximum). The maximum term provides openness, transparency, and
continued refreshment of skills, qualification and experience [C32]. Executive membership is
deemed not to be time limited. Each elected Board Member is a Shareholder with a £1 share.
Operations are managed by the Leadership Team led by the Chief Executive and Secretary.
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Board and Audit Committee succession planning is an ongoing process, based on the required
skills and experience detailed in Tables 4 and 5 [C36].
The Association does not have a separate Remuneration Committee. Remuneration is dealt
with by the Board, in the absence of the Executive [C35].
Conflicts of interest are strictly controlled in accordance with the adopted National Housing
Federation (NHF) ‘Code of Governance: Promoting Board Excellence for Housing
Associations (2015 Edition)’. Self-assessment of compliance with the Code of Governance
(the Code) is undertaken annually by the Board and noted within the Annual Report [C40]
[C45].
A required outcome of the Regulator of Social Housing’s ‘Governance and Financial Viability
Standard’ is ‘Registered providers shall ensure effective governance arrangements that
deliver their aims, objectives and intended outcomes for Tenants and potential Tenants in an
effective, transparent and accountable manner’. Appraisal of the Board and Audit Committee
performance as groups was completed during the year, providing positive outcomes and
performance actions for continued development.
The legal duties and essential function of Board Membership
Board Members have a wide range of duties. Regulation of the Association is primarily through
its governing Rules and the Regulator of Social Housing’s ‘Regulatory Standards’.
An essential function of the Board is to establish and oversee a framework of delegation and
systems of internal control. The ‘Specific Expectation’ of the Regulator’s ‘Governance and
Financial Viability Standard’ is that: ‘Registered Providers shall adopt and comply with an
appropriate code of governance’. The Association acknowledges that governance is vital to
continued viability and complies with the National Housing Federation’s ‘Code of Governance’,
entitled ‘Promoting Board excellence for housing associations (2015 Edition)’.
Board and Audit Committee Member obligations and duty of skill and care
The most important of the general fiduciary duties of a Board Member is an obligation to carry
out his or her duties with due skill and care, being that which can be expected of a 'prudent
man or woman of business' in the exercise of their personal business affairs. Board Members
should ensure that they either have the necessary skills or receive adequate training so as to
acquire them, and Lincs Rural will facilitate this training accordingly. Members with higher
levels of skill and experience (with professional skills, qualifications and experience) are
expected to meet a standard of care which is equivalently higher. Members must take
particular care to ensure that every proposed activity falls within the permitted objectives of
the organisation as set out in its Rules and Corporate Strategy.
Members are provided with a formal agreement specifying their obligations, detailing the key
roles and duties of Board membership, and time commitment involved to fulfil the role and its
duties.
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The Association does not remunerate Board membership and the formal agreement includes
obligations to:
(a) Uphold the values, objectives and Policies of the organisation;
(b) Contribute to and share responsibility for the Board’s decisions;
(c) Prepare for and attend meetings, training sessions and other events;
(d) Participate in reviews of individual performance, and that of the whole Board;
(e) Represent the organisation as appropriate, and declare any relevant interests;
(f) Respect confidentiality of information; and
(g) Uphold the Code of Governance and the Association’s Code of Conduct.
Ensuring the governance structure has the ability to deliver strategy and create value
The Regulator of Social Housing’s ‘Governance and Financial Viability Standard’ specific
expectation is that ‘Registered Providers shall ensure that they manage their affairs with an
appropriate degree of skill, independence, diligence, effectiveness, prudence and foresight’.
The Corporate Structure is illustrated in Figure 1, and the Board Skills and Experience at the
end of the financial year is provided in Tables 4 and 5.
Board membership provided effective governance throughout the financial year evidenced at
the Board Meeting in March 2020 when results of the Board 360 Degree Appraisal of its
group performance illustrated high standards of governance had been achieved. A Board
Performance Improvement Plan was devised which focused on identified training
requirements.
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Figure 3
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7

8

Jean Pearce / 3rd
term ends 2026 / /
(3rd Year 1st Term)

9

Lesley
Robinson
LLB
(Hons)
(Chairman) / 3rd
term ends 2025 (1st
Year of 2nd Term)

10

Professor Jeffrey
Ridley / (1st Year 1st
Term)

11

Xenia Stredwick –
Co-opted Nov 2019

12

Hilary
Tunmore
BA(Hons)
Co-opted Dec 2019

Chartered secretary, fellow of the CIIA,
corporate governance, quality management,
practical experience in all forms of auditing
practices
Audit Manager, Senior Computer Auditor, risk
management,
strategic
and
operational
controls, leadership of multi-disciplinary audit
teams
Social Care Director, Board Member and Senior
Manager.
Change
Management,
Quality
Assurance, Multi-disciplinary working and
Performance Management.
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Communication
and
Information Technology
Customers
and
Communities

John Emerson / 3rd
term ends 2022
(1st Year of 3rd
Term)
John Land / 3rd term
ends 2027 / / (2nd
Year 1st Term)

and

6

Housing Management and
Service Delivery

Bob Culliford / 3rd
term ends 2026
(3rd Year 1st Term )

Asset Management
Development

5

Governance
and
Regulatory Environment

Tenant of the Association, Community
Outreach Manager based in Spilsby. Youth
Worker & Mental Health Support. Safeguarding,
Networking & Social Media.
University Director of ICT, delivery of ICT and
Audio-Visual services, Elected Chair of a
charity’s Board of Trustees, risk and financial
management, knowledge and expertise of
transformation, learning and research for
operational efficiency and performance.
Senior management and governance positions
in commercial development business, funding
procurement,
design
and
construction,
property
marketing,
strategic
planning,
financial forecasting
Building design, construction management,
repair and improvements, planning, general
business management, budgetary and financial
control
Senior banking management and Branch
Manager, lending to social housing sector, risk
management, performance management and
human resources
Previous Career Civil Servant, National
Insurance Inspector, Fraud Investigation, CAB,
Tribunal Appeals Advisor. Passionate about
social justice and equal opportunities.
Legal, housing law, estate agency, business
management, HR, CAB work, finance,
governance,
youth
restorative
justice
experience

Risk Management

David Bruce / 3rd
term ends 2028 / (1st
Year
1st
Term)
14/3/19
Drew Cook BA
(Hons) Computing
in Business / 3rd
term ends 2028 / (1st
Year 1st Term)

Audit

4

Internal and External Audit for companies,
charities and education, commercial, financial
planning, business strategy, external and assetbased finance, working capital requirements
University of Lincoln B.A (Hons) in Business
studies,
studying
MSc
Governance,
recruitment, compliance auditing, social media

Finance

3

Robert Anderson
BSc FCA CTA / 3rd
term ends 2026 /
(3rd Year 1st Term)
Michael Bann / 3rd
term ends 2027 /
(2nd Year 1st Term)

General Business Skills

2

Experience

Independent Audit Member

1

and

Board Member

Table 4
Governance Skills
Register March 2020
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Board

Table 5

Audit

Board and Audit Committee Matrix of Skills and Experience
March 2020
General
Skills

Business

Finance

Audit

Risk Management

Governance
Regulatory
Environment

and

Asset Management
and Development

Housing
Management and
Service Delivery

Customers
Communities

and

Communication
and
Information
Technology

Leadership – Experience of senior leadership within the public or private sector

9

Change Management – Experience of implementing organisational change or transformation
programmes
HR – Experience of delivering HR services and Organisational Development programmes such
Investors in People
Performance Management – Knowledge and experience of analysing performance information
and taking appropriate action
Financial acumen – Knowledge and experience of analysing financial information and taking
appropriate action
Funding – Knowledge and experience of treasury management, grant regimes and financing
options
Auditing – Experience of audit processes and internal controls and assurance frameworks

7

8

4

Compliance, Whistleblowing (Speak-Up Policy) and Fraud –
Knowledge and ability to assess adequacy and security of processes and arrangements

11

5

Internal / External Audit – Ability to scrutinise, monitor and review the effectiveness of the internal
audit function in the context of the overall governance, risk management and control systems
Risk Management – identification and effective management of risk. Able to effectively oversee
risk management frameworks and assurance procedures
Legal/Governance – Understanding of good governance and compliance with relevant legislation

6

3

8

4

Regulation – Understanding of the requirements of the current regulatory environment and the
implications for the organisation

6

Compliance – Knowledge and understanding of compliance requirements including Health and
Safety. Experience of overseeing assurance in these areas

5

Strategic asset management – Knowledge and experience of managing a portfolio of properties
in line with strategic objectives

2

Development and Investment – Experience of overseeing development/investment programmes
and knowledge of associated issues

2

Housing management – Knowledge of service delivery, service improvement and housing and
tenancy related issues

2

Customer service – Experience of engaging with and looking after the interests of external and
internal customers to ensure that reasonable and practical needs and expectations are
understood, met and exceeded

6

Social value – Experience of community led and social enterprise organisations, Tenant
engagement, participation and community development

5

Customer insight – Knowledge, experience and understanding of Tenants

3

Local area – Understanding of the challenges facing communities in which Lincs Rural operates.
Experience of developing relationships in the third sector within the Lincolnshire Region.

4

Social Media – Knowledge and use of media i.e. Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, LinkedIn, etc

4

CIT Systems – Knowledge and skills relating to systems and applications

6

Strategic CIT – Ability to advise and assist with the development and maintenance of a Digital
Media Strategy to maximise the business benefits of data assets and technology-focused
initiatives.

1

Digital delivery – Experience of delivering digital solutions to enhance the Tenant experience.

1

24

5
10

5

6

2

5

11

DocuSign Envelope ID: C71FF1CC-E0D6-4637-9B69-B7D4390E3975

INTEGRATED STRATEGIC REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

Policy for Admitting New Shareholders
Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association is accountable to its Shareholders. Shareholders are
recruited to act in the interest of the Association, for the benefit of rural communities, and to
act as guardians of Lincs Rural’s Vision, Mission and Objectives. Shareholders:
(a) Provide a representative selection of organisations and people, interested in the
Association, with the potential for future strength in leadership and governance;
(b) Allow Stakeholders to express support for and a commitment to the Lincs Rural;
(c) Enhance the Association's accountability to the communities where it operates; and
(d) Provide tenants with an opportunity to influence and be involved in the management and
governance of the organisation.
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Opportunities and Risks with the potential to affect achievement of the Corporate
Strategy and create value [C43]
The annual SWOT Workshop provides an understanding of important external factors and
risks necessary for decision-making, and the identification of opportunities with the potential
to create value for the organisation and others. Due to the intensive recruitment process for a
new Chief Executive, and preparations for the achievement of Investors in People Platinum,
the Workshop was not held in 2019. The IIP assessment however was a rigorous process that
fully investigated the operation strengths and weaknesses. It also provided an Improvement
Action Plan, illustrating where future opportunities were available. The continuous risk
assessment process embedded in governance and management adequately considers
weaknesses and threats on a regular basis. The next SWOT / PESTLE Workshop is
scheduled for 22 October 2020.
Risk Management [C43]
The Chief Executive and Leadership Team monitor and assess risk likely to affect the
Association. The Risk Register prioritises the major risks identified and details the controls,
risk scores, actions taken and the impact of risk failure. The Board and Audit Committee
consider the principal risks and controls at every meeting and have live online access to the
detailed Risk Register. The Board approves the Risk Register, which is a summary of key
risks and the methods to be used for managing them. The Leadership Team implements the
risk management decisions of the Board, including the allocation of responsibility for risks and
maintenance of an effective system of internal control.
Risks are also cross-referenced with the Corporate Strategy, Performance Monitoring, and
the Regulator’s risk category designation. Risks identified are not intended to be exhaustive
but comprise the major risk areas upon which continued evaluation and identification is
progressed. The ‘Control Evaluation’ of each risk is identified as either ‘OK’ or ‘NOT OK’.
Insurance is maintained in respect of many of the identified risks. Tendering of Insurance
services was undertaken in February 2019 in accordance with the Procurement Policy. The
successful Tender provided an overall saving of 42% with enhanced insurance cover.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties [C43]
Risk is the ‘effect of uncertainty on objectives’ (ISO Guide 73 – International Organisation of
Standardisation’s Guide on Risk Management). Risk is any event which may affect the
Association’s financial viability and ability to meet the Vision, Mission and Corporate Strategy.
The Regulator of Social Housing’s Governance and Financial Viability Standard’ states
‘Governance arrangements shall ensure registered providers have an effective risk
management and internal controls framework’ 1.1(e), that resources are managed effectively
to ensure viability, and that social housing assets are not put at undue risk.
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Lincs Rural’s ‘Risk Policy Statement’ states: ‘It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure
effective governance, with risk management being a key priority. Risk Management will be a
central part of the strategic management of the organisation in conducting business for
continuous improvement and provision of value for money’. The Chief Executive is responsible
for maintaining resource to manage risk effectively, efficiently and economically.
Robust Business Plan stress testing has been undertaken to demonstrate the Association’s
resilience to viability and capacity to continue development or acquisition of new property.
The top ten risks identified at the end of March 2020 are illustrated in Table 6.
Risk No

Table 6 – Top Ten Risks

1

Coronavirus (Covid-19 pandemic) – Collapse of the economy; Office closure and
lack of remote working; Lack of effective governance and decision making; Internal
control breakdown / changes to established processes; Health of Staff and Tenants;
Tenants experience increased financial hardship leading to high arrears; Inability to
gain access to Tenant homes; Inability to deliver services, or significant disruption
to services; Failure of key supplier/ contractor/ supply chain; Breach of health and
safety protocol when delivering services; financial viability and cashflow / liquidity;
Failure to keep up with changes in legal/ regulatory requirements; Future failure to
obtain acceptably priced insurance for pandemic; Increased risk to information
security; and Increase of staff absenteeism / loss of key personnel.
Welfare Reform – Direct payment of Universal Credit to Tenants and delays due
to exceptionally high level of applications could negatively affect arrear levels and
cash flow.
Brexit – Possibly leading to increasing interest rates, reduced availability of loans,
and deterioration in Tenant financial status.
Increasing SH Pension Scheme deficit / increasing contributions.

2

3
4
5
6
7
8

9
10

Deteriorating financial status of Tenants and their increasing cost of living –
Could negatively impact the income stream, cash flow and rent arrear levels.
Lack of data integrity / accuracy of information – Incorrect information used
usually results in inaccurate results for information.
Unexpected loss of key personnel – Key personnel is defined for this risk as the
‘Heads of Service’.
Computer Management System Failure – Loss of business-critical data and down
time could result in data protection breach or negatively impact the service provided
to tenants.
Health & Safety – Failure of compliance to H&S regulations could result in a major
person / property incident leading to reputational and financial loss.
Non-compliance of GDPR – Could result in financial penalties and reputation
damage.
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2. SECTION 2 - SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIPS – Vision – ‘Helping sustain Rural
Communities’, and Mission – ‘To Provide Homes for Rural People in Need’
Nature and Relationship with Shareholders and Stakeholders
People are the defining factor in the business of Lincs Rural. The Association is accountable
to its Stakeholders, who are recruited to act in the interest of the organisation, for the benefit
of rural communities, and to act as guardians of the Vision, Mission and Objectives.
Shareholders:
(e) Provide a representative selection of organisations and people, interested in the
Association, with the potential for future strength in leadership and governance;
(f) Allow Stakeholders to express support for and a commitment to Lincs Rural;
(g) Enhance the Association's accountability to the communities where it operates; and
(h) Provide Tenants with an opportunity to influence and be involved in the management and
governance of the organisation.
Knowing the population size and demography of Lincolnshire, and understanding how it is
changing, are important factors for the Association’s future development and improvement
programmes. The following population change projections over twenty-five years for selected
age groups in Lincolnshire has been taken from the ‘ONS Population Projections 2018’.

Change
over 25
years

0-15

16-64

65-74

Table 7
Total

75+

2016

119,100(16%) 454,600(61%) 96,300(13%)

2041

120,300(15%) 453,400(55%) 110,000(13%) 140,600(17%) 824,300

Change

+1%

-1%

+14%

74,800(10%)

+87%

744,800

+10.67%

The Association’s Tenant Profile by ‘Tenancy Holder Age’ is:
Table 8

At May 2020

0-15

16-64

65-74

75+

0%

72%

17%

11%
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Taking account that Tenancy Agreements cannot be held by the age group 0 – 15, the above
Tenancy Profile is in-line with Lincolnshire’s population profile at 2016. The projection at 2041
indicates that the Tenancy Profile for the 75+ age group is likely to grow by 70% to around
17% overall.
(a) Lincs Rural is home to approximately 1100 people, which is a significant responsibility;
(b) 10% of households are in receipt of full housing benefit, 13% claiming partial housing
benefit and approximately 14% on Universal Credit. Welfare Reform will continue to impact
further on these households in respect of being able to afford rent and living costs;
(c) 94 Lincs Rural properties, 22%, have a single occupancy, with over 69% aged over 65,
and 21% being aged 80 or over; and
(d) There are 50 Lincs Rural households with a disabled occupant, and 37 classified as being
vulnerable.
The challenges faced by rural communities in Lincolnshire and the Country as a whole are
many and varied. Useful sources of information used to inform decision making include the
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Financial Inclusion in Lincolnshire and the Rural
Services Network (RSN), who act as the National Champion for rural services, business and
people.
Data released 2019 and included in last years Annual Report is worthy of repetition to highlight
again the challenges that rural communities face relating to an affordable place to live:
(a) Average house prices are £44,000 higher in rural areas than urban areas (2017);
(b) Only 8% of households in villages live in social housing. By contrast, 19%
of households in urban settlements live in social housing (2011 Census);
(c) The rural stock of social rented housing has shrunk under the Right to Buy policy. Only 1
replacement home was built in rural areas for every 8 sold between 2012 and 2015; and
(d) It has previously been estimated there is a need to build 7,500 new affordable homes each
year in England’s small rural settlements, a figure now considered an under-estimate.
Around 3,700 such homes were completed in 2015/16 and just over 4,000 during 2016/17.
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Affordability
The extent to which Lincs Rural provides homes that are genuinely affordable to the rural
people the Association was created to serve, who are typically on low-incomes. Unfortunately,
people are generally unwilling to share income details to clearly compare rents and
affordability.
Table 9 provides a ‘Rent Affordability Indicator’ using available data [C1].
Table 9
LOCAL AUTHORITY

General Needs
Boston Borough
East Lindsey
King’s Lynn & West
Norfolk
North Kesteven
North Lincolnshire
Rutland
South Holland
South Kesteven
West Lindsey

Average Local
3 Bed Housing
LRHA
Allowance
Rent

Average
3
Bed
Private
Sector
Rent

£92.97
£92.60
N/A

£149.59
£126.86
£155.34

£159.95
£132.33
£166.85

£93.68
£99.26
£100.50
£96.86
£95.59
£92.76

£128.88
£108.93
£155.34
£154.96
£143.55
£115.84

£155.34
£132.33
£169.15
£159.95
£159.95
£126.58

% of LRHA
Homes with
Local
Authority
Nomination
agreements

Affordability
indicator of
LRHA
homes
by
LA Area
R/A/G

100%
50%
100%

100%

Table 9 illustrates that within each of the nine local authorities the Association operates in,
rents are below the local housing allowance and significantly lower than the average private
sector rent.
Tenant Involvement, Engagement and Scrutiny [C7]
The Regulator of Social Housings (RSH) Consumer Standards apply to Registered Providers
and Local Authorities. The four Consumer Standards are:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Standard 2017. This updated Standard
was introduced at the Board meeting on 26 October 2017;
Home Standard 2015;
Tenancy Standard 2015; and
Neighbourhood and Community Standard 2015.

Lincs Rural must demonstrate compliance, across all aspects of the Consumer Standards,
including how Tenants are engaged by the Association, how neighbourhood issues are dealt
with, and how properties are allocated. The self-assessment of compliance against the
Consumer Standards for the financial year was undertaken at the Board meeting on 13 March
2020, concluding general compliance.
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Tenant involvement is undertaken in a variety of ways to suit Tenant preferences for
engagement with the Association. At governance level a Tenant is a Member of the Board of
Management and Audit Committee. At operational level a network of Tenant Representatives
serves the majority of properties across Lincs Rurals operating area. This provides effective
two-way communication between the Association and Tenants, to develop and implement
opportunities for involvement, and empowerment. Information is provided in a number of ways
to suit Tenant needs. This information is available on www.lrha.co.uk, in Handbooks and other
documents, provided with every new Tenancy Agreement. This also includes how to access
services and the standards to be expected, how Lincs Rural performs against those standards
(see the Local Offer and Annual Review), progress with maintenance and improvements etc.
Tenant involvement and Table 10 illustrates significant achievement of the ‘main dashboard’
Strategic Action of ‘Engaging with Tenants, listen to their voice, and consult on future actions’.
Whilst 100% of the Local Offer was not achieved during the year, Dashboard Metric 48 was
achieved i.e. ‘91% Tenant satisfaction that Lincs Rural listens to their views and action is
taken’. This evidences Strategic Objective ‘Tenants are our priority’ is achieved. [C8]
Table 10
Performance
Indicators

Lincs
Rural
2019/20

Lincs
Rural
2018/19

Median
Of
Benchmark
Group

Median
Small
National
HA’s

Median
National
HA’s

92%

Lincs Rural
Rank
In
Benchmark
Group
Highest

% of Tenants satisfied
with the landlord’s
services overall – GN
only
% of Tenants satisfied
with the overall quality
of their home - GN
% of Tenants satisfied
with
their
neighbourhood as a
place to live
% of Tenants satisfied
with the value for
money for their rent GN
% of Tenants satisfied
with the value for
money of their service
charges - GN
% of Tenants satisfied
that their landlord
listens to their views
and acts upon them GN
% of Tenants satisfied
with
repairs
and
maintenance - GN

96%

94%

●

89%

82%

94%

90%

●

89%

2nd highest

88%

81%

96%

94%

●

91%

2nd highest

87%

82%

100%

97%

●

92%

Highest

89%

85%

87%

88%

●

82%

2nd highest

77%

68%

91%

73%

●

87%

2nd highest

79%

66%

85%

81%

●

85%

Median

87%

74%

* Metrics also form part of the Sector Scorecard.
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Whilst the data provided in Table 10 provides levels of satisfaction it is useful to compare this
with the level and type of complaints received and resolved during the financial year, as
illustrated below. The Complaints Procedure is readily available on the www.lrha.co.uk, or in
hard copy, for Tenants and others [C9], which provides a flowchart of how complaints are
handled.
Table 11

Tenant Complaints 2019/20
16

14

14
12
9

10

9

8
6
4
2

4
1

3

2

0

0
Housing
Management

External
Contractor

PMS

April 19 - March 2020

staff

1

0

Finance

April 18 - March 19

There was an increase of five complaints in comparison to the previous year, all of the
reported problems were managed in compliance with the Association’s three stage
process.
The procurement of new gas and electrical approved contractors has seen a significant
improvement in satisfaction levels with a 77% reduction in problems reported.
The increase of 35% regarding the directly employed maintenance service highlighted the
need to improve the level and quality of communication with our Tenants in this area.
Complaint data is used proactively to improve service delivery. Steps subsequently taken
to increase Tenant satisfaction in 2020/21 include: training with Maintenance Technicians;
recruitment of new support Staff with excellent communications skills; improved
information on operational decisions; and reduction of delays in undertaking works.
Table 10 & 11 and the following metrics in the ‘Main Dashboard of Metrics’ evidences the
Strategic Action that ‘Staff are Tenant focused providing a high level of service to Tenants and
achieving high customer satisfaction’. This has assisted n the delivery of the overall Strategic
Objective of ‘Tenants are our priority’:
Metric 40 – Number of complaints received (against the Association) is less than 26; and
Metric 39 – 90% of Tenants are satisfied with the overall service provided.
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Adding Social Value to Tenants and the Community
The RSH neighbourhood and Community Standard requires the Association to keep
neighbourhoods safe where properties are located, cooperate to help promote social,
environmental and economic wellbeing where properties are owned. This includes working in
partnership with others to prevent and tackle anti-social behaviour (see Table 11 above) [C11].
The Association received Investors in People Platinum accreditation in September 2019. An
extract from the Independent Assessors report is stated below, which illustrates the
commitment to social value and communities.
Table 12 and 13 below illustrates that Strategic Action ‘Adding social value to communities’
in the Association’s Main Dashboard of Metrics, assisted in achieving the Corporate Strategy
Strategic Objective of being ‘Financially Viable’.
‘We have high social value’
Interview evidence revealed that your people are acutely aware of the Association’s social and
economic operating environment and the challenges that tenant’s face, including, for example:
a) the changes from housing benefit to Universal Credit;
b) fuel poverty and the need to reduce energy bills;
c) the needs of vulnerable tenants such as those with dementia and mobility challenges.
Your people also understand the relationship between the Association and the broader
community through the lens of their tenants and the need to provide high-quality affordable
social housing to sustain the social mix of rural Lincolnshire communities, located in a
relatively low-wage agricultural county. For example, your people cited the value of providing
homes for families with children keeps local schools and nurseries open, and sustaining
communities keeps village shops and community facilities operating. They explained that the
alternative is likely to be drift towards dormitory villages, the rise of private landlords charging
market rents (out of the range of many rural people), and where comparably wealthy people
can spend their retirement years: rural communities would change in character: such a trend,
it was argued, would detrimentally change rural Lincolnshire.’
The report further captured the following from Lincs Rurals Staff:
Memorable quotes
“Achieving £5.5m of social value from a £2.5m turnover is remarkable.”
“We don’t make significant mistakes because of our tight approach to risk management.”
“You want to do your best here because you are recognised for what you do. Much better than
the previous housing association I worked for.”
“It’s great working here – I love it.”
“I’m struggling to think about what could be improved about working here.”
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Table 12 A sample of the Association’s social value activities over the year is illustrated below.
Social Value Activity

Outcome

Value
of
Activity

Source of value /
workings

Providing
quality
homes and services to
Tenants

£3,186,667

NHF
Economic
Calculator

Able to pay for housing

£1,013,886

HACT Social Value
Bank

Minor adaptations fitted to sixteen properties to
assist with mobility issues

Feel in control of life

£254,304

HACT Social Value
Bank

96% of surveyed Tenants confirmed their
neighbourhood is a good place to live (results from
Tenant Satisfaction Feedback Form)

Good neighbourhood

£716,270

HACT Social Value
Bank

Active
groups

£292,176

HACT Social Value
Bank

General training for job

£21,938

HACT Social Value
Bank

One member of staff moved from unemployment to
full time employment with Lincs Rural

Full time employment

£14,433

HACT Social Value
Bank

One member of staff is supported to undertake a
voluntary role at another organisation

Regular volunteering

£3,249

HACT Social Value
Bank

Day to day activities
Added value provided by the Association’s day to
day activities

Local
Impact

Tenant financial status
Benefit and Universal Credit advice provided to 138
Tenants including home visits and award of
Discretionary Housing Payments
Tenant well-being

Tenant Engagement
Tenant Representative meetings are held regularly
with 36 active members

in

Tenant

Training
All members of staff undertook training to improve
skills for their role
Employment

Assessed value of social activities for 2019/20

£5,502,923

Table 12 evidences that the Strategic Action ‘Consider Tenant well-being’, in the ‘Main
Dashboard of Metrics’, is being delivered against the Corporate Objective ‘ Tenants are our
priority’.
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Provision of secure tenancies for high quality affordable homes and related support and advice
services are provided by the Association. A home provides shelter, warmth and safety which
are fundamental human needs. The benefits of having a safe and secure home are wide
ranging and can assist with healthy, happy family environments that enable improved wellbeing, educational and working achievement. The Association’s specialism of providing
affordable housing in smaller villages and hamlets supports ‘people networks’ to deliver Lincs
Rural’s Vision of ‘Helping Sustain Rural Communities’.
Wellbeing continues to be a critical issue for housing associations nationally. ‘Health and
wellbeing’ are included on the Association’s Risk Register with controls in place to ensure
staff receive the required training and understand their responsibilities. This has become
a major focus in the COVID-19 pandemic.
In addition to the extensive social value that the provision of affordable homes in rural locations
provides, examples of the many other social value activities undertaken by the Association
include:
(a) The purchase of an electric vehicle which has saved approximately 960 CO2e compared
to a diesel vehicle (source: carbonfootprint.com);
(b) A proactive support process for vulnerable Tenants including regular visits and additional
support in periods of inclement weather; and
(c) Donations have been made to a local charity which has enabled mental health support,
clubs for children, a food bank and social events for adults with special educational needs
in and around Spilsby.
Staff Wellbeing
The commitment to the Investors in People (IIP) framework since 2005 evidences that the
Association places Staff progression, well-being and a positive culture at the forefront. The
following illustrates Staff satisfaction, which enables high performance for Tenant and
communities. The IIP Platinum award, and satisfaction in Table 13, This illustrates
achievement of Corporate Strategy Objective ‘EMPLOYEES – Motivated and professional
team’
Table 13
Comparing survey results - % agreement at 95% Confidence Level

2017

2018

2019

My Association is a great place to work

86%

100%

100%

My Association has a plan for the future

-

100%

100%

My Association embraces change

-

84%

100%

My Association has a positive impact on society

85%

100%

100%

All Staff are paid above the living wage, and the Chief Executive-Staff salary ratio is 3.38:1,
(based on the medium salary of Staff) [C13 & C14].
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3. SECTION 3 – ENVIRONMENTAL ETHICS AND CLIMATE CHANGE
Lincs Rurals commitment to minimising the environmental impact of its work
The first renewable technology installed at a Lincs Rural property was a solar thermal system
in 1994. 48 properties now have thermal systems, 115 have photovoltaic panels, 17 air source
heat pumps, and a full house battery system is currently being tested on one property. A
biomass community heating system serves 12 properties, and the Association previously had
a wind turbine on a 6-property site, and ground source heat pumps installed in 4 properties.
In total 44% of the Association’s housing stock has some form of environmental attributes,
above a conventional building regulation compliant home.
The phased project at Bicker in 2004 and 2006 imported 24 highly efficient Swedish homes
that incorporated triple glazing, mechanical heating and ventilation systems, super insulation,
and materials that are almost 100% recyclable. A partnership with a local development
company in 2009 produced pioneering homes at Grimoldby, and at Long Sutton, with 18 super
insulated homes in completely different forms.
One project consisting of 6 earth bunded properties achieved an Energy Performance
Certificate rating of 100. This development at Unity Gardens, Long Sutton, won the Smaller
Social Housing Project Sustainable Housing Awards in 2010, and was the Association’s first
properties to incorporate grey water recycling, and provision of allotments for Tenants.
The second project utilised Super Insulated Panels and recycled materials as the insulating
component between floors to give added heat retention. Mechanical ventilation with filtering
removes pollen and other dust, solar thermal provides hot water during sunny months
complimenting the communal biomass heating system, in visually stunning homes.
Always mindful of Lincs Rural’s impact on the environment, the organisation also provides a
fully electric pool car for staff to use to reduce carbon emissions.
Lincs Rural’s report on sustainability annually in the Annual Report and Annual Review. The
environment strategy is a critical component of the organisations Asset Strategy [C20 & C21],
which states:
Lincs Rural believes that building, managing and maintaining homes should not ‘cost the
earth’ either financially or environmentally. Lincs Rural consider beyond the actual building
process as the finished home provided to Tenants and all services related to it should also
be as resource efficient as possible.
This principle ensures that Lincs Rural’s business activities are undertaken responsibly
and in the most efficient, effective and economical manner. An aspiration is that Tenants
are not using too much of the Earth’s resources for essentials such as space heating and
hot water in the home.
Lincs Rural is committed to best environmental practices in all aspects of its activities:
Energy procurement; Energy use; Water consumption; Waste reduction; Green spaces
management; and Travel.
The aspiration is to reduce the carbon footprint of Lincs Rural, prevent pollution and deliver
environmentally sound services.
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The most significant overarching environmental target adopted by the UK government is
the reduction of national carbon dioxide emissions by 80%, compared with a 1990
baseline, by 2050.
Lincs Rural considers it a critical strategic priority to ensure that tenants are able to
maintain and achieve healthy comfortable temperatures, in their homes, at a reasonable
cost. The improvement of the energy efficiency of a home improves the wellbeing of our
Tenant’s and reduces carbon emissions.
The total capacity of renewable energy production for the renewable technologies deployed
in Lincs Rural homes is 220 Megawatt hours (MWh) annually, or 2.10 Gigawatt (GWh) over
the next thirty years [C18 & C19]. The total reduction in carbon emissions over this period by
Lincs Rural’s energy efficiency initiatives is in excess of 1.10 kilo tonnes (kt) of CO2, which is
over two thousand metric tonnes saved from the atmosphere.
The Association understands the importance of providing information to Tenants on
sustainability matters such as correct ventilation, heating and recycling. How Tenants manage
their homes ultimately has a large influence on the environmental impact that a home creates,
and therefore Lincs Rural has consistently communicated to Tenants how to do so in a
sustainable manner [C22].
The warm welcome Tenants receive to their new homes includes an induction session on how
to maximise the benefit of the renewable technologies, and the heating system, to reduce
household utility bills. The awareness raising work with longstanding Tenants has been
undertaken by the directly employed Maintenance Technicians, projects with the Energy
Saving Trust, and initiatives with the local authorities of North Kesteven, South Holland,
Boston Borough and North Lincolnshire.
Energy performance has been measured on a regular basis. The following Table 14 Illustrates
the Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) ratings across the Association’s portfolio of
properties [C15].
Table 14
% Homes rated A

2%

% Homes rated B

24%

% Homes rated C

38%

% Homes rated D

34%

% Homes rated E or worse

2%

A significant amount of work to achieve the ratings on Table 14, has been undertaken in the
past. The Strategic Action of ‘Reimplementing the affordable warmth programme to install
more efficient and economical heating systems’ in the Association’s Main Dashboard of
Metrics, is assisting the achievement of Corporate Strategy Strategic Objective of ‘Maintaining
homes to a good standard’
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Heating and hot water is the largest use of energy for most homes. Table 15 illustrates the
distribution of heating and hot water sources throughout the Associations property portfolio
[C17]:
Table 15
Gas boilers

45%

Electric

41%

Heat pumps

4%

Biomass

3%

Other

7%

The high average energy efficiency of homes illustrated in Section 3, and in Table 14, is an
illustrator that Corporate Strategy Object ‘Maintenance – maintain homes to a good standard’
is being achieved.
4. SECTION 4 – STOCK GROWTH
The major Business Plan issue during the year was the delayed planned acquisition of
twelve new properties. The outcome of this is that Corporate Strategy Objective
‘DEVELOPMENT – grow our housing stock’ was not achieved.
A positive outcome of this however, is higher than expected liquidity, providing significant
financial headroom for the high and uncertain risks being presented by the COVID-19
pandemic. An unfortunate trade-off against the provision of a further twelve affordable units,
desperately needed in the current housing crisis.
The 2020 / 21 Business Plan has a development programme of 32 units over the first five
years and a total of 152 units over the 30 year Plan. It is intended for the programme to be
achieved predominately through land led development. This means the Association is able to
provide properties in areas which have a known housing need enabling people to remain in
their communities and enjoy living in a rural home. This method also enables the Association
to have control over the build size ensuring comfortable family living, energy efficient homes
for affordable running costs and work towards the zero carbon target by 2050.
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5. SECTION 5 – FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY
Rent recovery has been amongst the highest in the sector. Maximising income from business
activity. Careful business planning has produced the operating surplus that ensures financial
viability, resilience and capacity, enabling opportunity to deliver against the planned strategy.
The following metrics illustrate Lincs Rurals financial viability success, value creation, and
value for money delivered to Tenants for their rent payment.
Lincs Rural’s Approach to Value for Money (VfM)
The Board defines VfM as: ‘A cost the organisation is prepared to pay for service quality that
it determines to deliver, to the right people within the appropriate timescales, consistent with
current Corporate Strategy’.
The Board’s VfM Strategy seeks to achieve: a continuous improvement in performance on
running costs and use of assets, to deliver quality services rather than cheapest costs.
Resources will be directed towards the Corporate Strategy for the next 5 years and customer
satisfaction.
The Board ensures that there are robust approaches to making decisions on the use of
available resources, understands the return on assets, and has performance management
and scrutiny functions which are effective, efficient and economical.
The Association works with Tenants and other Stakeholders to make the best use of resources
to meet current and future needs and contributes to continuous improvement of services.
VfM is a leading objective within the Corporate Strategy for 2019 to 2024 ‘Governance –
Effective strategy, delivering value for money’.
Business Performance
The principal Financial Policies and surpluses for the year are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report and Financial Statements. The Board monitored a suite of Key
Performance Indicators (KPI’s) included in Main Operational Dashboard during 2019/20 for
assessing progress against the Corporate Strategy. These KPI’s enable scrutiny of principal
risks and controls, which are available to Board Members.
Four KPIs in the graphs below illustrate the excellent performance achieved against the
targets and Benchmark Group averages, fundamental to maximising income received for
resources required to deliver the Corporate Strategy.
Table 16
1.50%

0.60%

1.00%

0.40%

0.20%

15

0.15%

10

0.10%
0.50%

0.20%

0.00%

0.00%
Rent Arrears

5

0.05%

0

0.00%
Bad Debts

Void Losses

39

Av Letting Time
(Days)

Key:
 Target
 Actual
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Maximising the use of assets is an important issue for governance and management with
affordable social housing being in such high demand. During the year there were 12 weeks
when Lincs Rural properties were left vacant, due predominantly to allow time for
refurbishment works to be undertaken.
Performance against key performance indicators, reported to the Board on 11 June 2020,
illustrates continued strong performance during the financial year. Forty two out of the fifty four
KPI’s achieved target. The KPIs that did not achieve target are detailed below:

KPI ACHIEVEMENT
KPIs achieved

KPIs not achieved by 5% or less

KPIs not achieved

85%
fully or
partially
achieved

Table 16a
KPI Target

Actual

Total void days is less than 35 per annum
84 days
One property was abandoned and three others required work to meet the
Association’s lettable standards. One relet incurred a two-week void period due to
being unable to find a suitable Tenant for the remote village location during the
notice period.
Average weekly responsive maintenance cost per unit is in line
with the Business Plan
£14.51
£14.51 is slightly higher (1.8%) than the target of £14.26 due to an overspend on
responsive repairs.
Annual increase in turnover is in line with the business plan
-7.16%
The target was for a change in turnover of -6.74% due to the 1% rent reduction.
The actual was below target due to heating income and photovoltaic panels
generating less income than expected. Heating income is dependent on the level
of Tenant usage, and PV income varies due to the weather throughout the year.
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100% repair appointments kept
99%
Collection of this data was interrupted, however results for February and March are
available for reporting, during which two appointments were missed. This was due
to a communication error, when two additional repair jobs were provided for a
development visit, but were not received prior to attendance.
100% of emergency repairs attended within 24 hours
98%
Four emergency repairs were not attended within 24 hours, two of which no access
was gained, and two had alternative dates arranged for Tenant convenience.
100% of annual planned maintenance programme completed in
81%
financial year
A large number of changes to the programme was necessary due to the poor
planning for the first year of the gas and oil contract, and corrective action to
address the overspend. A delivery plan is developed for 2020/21 to prevent a
reoccurrence.
90% tenant satisfaction with the way LRHA deals with repairs and
maintenance
85%
This will continue to be monitored closely on the resumption of normal working
practices.
Average length of time properties are on the traffic light system
15
is less than 6 months
months
There were seven properties, (1.6%,) on the traffic light system at 31 March 2020.
All were receiving regular visits, and Staff will continue to encourage and work with
Tenants to improve the condition of their properties.
100% of Local Offer achieved
87.5%
One Local Offer target was missed due to staffing levels within the repairs team.
100% of training and development plans are completed
96%
One item of training identified during the appraisal process was not completed, but
is planned for completion during 2020/21.
100% of staff KPIs are achieved
62%
A selection of the KPIs are taken from the Main Operational Dashboard that can
be impacted by Staff, which are monitored regularly at Staff Performance Review
Meetings.
Total sick days as a % of total days available to work <1%
1.9%
An unusual high level of sickness was experienced during the first two months of
the financial year. This was partly due to one member of Staff being diagnosed with
a chronic illness, and another with a torn chest muscle. All Staff endeavour to return
to work as soon as they are able.

All loan covenants were achieved during the year, being a Strategic Action in the
Association’s Main Dashboard of Metrics, to achieve the Corporate Strategy Strategic
Objective of being ‘Financially Viable’.
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Value for Money Statement
The Regulator of Social Housing has selected nine value for money metrics to be reported
which are detailed in Table 17, Which illustrates delivery of the Strategic Objective
‘GOVERNANCE Effective strategy, delivering value for money’. The Board of Management
confirm compliance with the Regulator of Social Housing’s Value for Money Standard
2018, as evidence by the self-assessment, agreed at the Board meeting held on 12
March 2020.
The Association uses Acuity Performance Benchmarking Consultants to submit Key
Performance Indicator (KPI) data. This provides comparative data and trend analysis from a
range of housing associations. The Benchmark Group used to compare against is the Smaller
Housing Association Group which consists of 14 organisations.
The two metrics relating to new supply illustrates the Association has not increased its property
portfolio during the financial year. The development programme was significantly affected by
the 1% rent reduction. The Association sold one property in 2018 and another in 2019. The
funds received from these two disposals will be reinvested in new developments. The
Business Plan rent increase assumptions have been updated from 2020 following
confirmation from the Government that social housing rents will increase by CPI + 1% which
has increased the development programme over the 30-year plan. The results also illustrate
a low level of reinvestment during 2019/20 which is a result of no property developments
during they year and the Board’s decision to reduce the level of planned maintenance being
undertaken until 2020 following the 1% rent reduction. The planned maintenance and
affordable warmth programmes have been fully reinstated in 2020/21.
The two metrics relating to operating margin are below the median of the benchmarking group
but significantly higher than the median of the national smaller housing associations. The
reduction in percentage from last year is a result of the 1% rent reduction, no first tranche
shared ownership sales and an increase in maintenance costs.
Table 17

Lincs
Lincs
Rural
Rural
2019/20 2018/19

*Reinvestment %

0.66%

0.35%

*New Supply Delivered %

0.0%

0.0%

New Supply
housing) %
*Gearing %

0.0%
21%

0.0%
24%

●
●

Median of Lincs
Benchmark Rural’s
Group
Rank
in
Benchmark
Group
2.86%
2nd Lowest

3.08%

0.3%

0.0%

Joint
lowest

Median
National
Smaller
HA’s

(non-social

*EBITDA
MRI
Interest 237%
Cover %
*Headline Social Housing £2,919
Cost per Unit
*Operating Margin (Social 27%
Housing Lettings Only) %
*Operating Margin (Overall)
%
28%
*Return
on
Capital 3.35%
Employed

0.0%
29%

Lowest

0.0%
15%

208%

4th highest

254%

294 %

●
●

£2,557

●

£2,998

5th lowest

£4,475

35%

●

33%

4th lowest

19%

29%
2.48%

5th lowest
2nd highest

18%
2.34%

35%
3.70%
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Table 18 illustrates the Association’s strong performance in income recovery, back-to-back
lettings and low voids have achieved the Strategic Objective ‘FINANCE – Financial viability’.
Lincs Rural continues to have the low levels of arrears and achieved excellent results in
average re-let times and rent lost when compared to the Benchmarking Group. This evidences
the effectiveness of the income recovery and back to back letting processes.
Table 18
Performance Indicators

Lincs
Rural
2019/20

Lincs
Rural
2018/19

Median
Of
Benchmark
Group

Median
Small
National
HA’s

Median
National
HA’s

0.4%

Lincs Rural
Rank
In
Benchmark
Group
Joint lowest

Percentage of rent lost
through dwellings being
vacant
Average re-let times –
calendar days

0.05%

0.08%

●

0.4%

0.8%

2.8

4.7

●

14

Lowest

17.8

27.5

Current
Tenant
rent
arrears % net of Housing
Benefit – General Needs
Universal credit arrears
as % of total arrears

0.49%

0.23%

●

0.9%

2nd lowest

1.7%

2.6%

1.5%

1.3%

●

3.0%

4th lowest

3.2%

N/A

*Occupancy

100%

100%

●

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

* Metrics also form part of the Sector Scorecard.
Table 19 provides some measures of the Association’s costs with comparisons against the
previous year and other associations. It is an indicator of achievement against Strategic
Objective ‘GOVERNANCE – Effective strategy, delivering value for money’. The cost per unit
of housing management has increased slightly but remains the median of the Benchmark
Group.
Cost per property for responsive repairs has increased and is the median of the benchmark
group. The responsive repairs budget was increased during the year as required by the
increase in number of jobs required.
The cost per unit of major and cyclical works has increased due to requirement for electrical
tests to be undertaken every five years instead of ten. The Association has a high ratio of
responsive repairs to planned maintenance as a result of the Board making the decision to
reduce the level of planned and major works following the 1% rent reduction. A full planned
and major repair programme is in place from April 2020.
Lincs Rural has the third highest overhead costs as a % of turnover. A result of being a small
specialist organisation, such as Lincs Rural, is that overhead costs are allocated across fewer
units and allocation varies between all Associations. This indicator will continue to be
monitored carefully against the Association’s business plan.
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Table 19
Performance
Indicators

Lincs
Rural
2019/20

Lincs
Rural
2018/19

Median
Of
Benchmark
Group

Median
Small
National
HA’s

Median
National
HA’s

£329

Lincs Rural
Rank
In
Benchmark
Group
4th lowest

Cost per property of
housing management

£236

£204

●

£389

£279

Cost per property
responsive repairs

of

£619

£510

●

£618

Median

£692

£726

Cost per property of
major and cyclical works

£511

£286

●

£824

3rd lowest

£1,061

£1,410

*Overhead costs as a %
of turnover

21.8%

22.3%

●

19.3%

3rd Highest

16.0%

10.8%

*Ratio of responsive
repairs
to
planned
maintenance

1.59:1

0.93:1

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

* Metrics also form part of the Sector Scorecard.
Table 19 illustrates that the level of resource directed towards the Strategic Objectives
‘Maintain homes to a good standard’, and ‘Tenants are our priority’, is comparable to the
benchmarking groups. Lincs Rural’s housing stock is in good condition and does not require
the high levels of major and cyclical maintenance compared to other benchmarked
associations.
Achievement of the following metrics from the ‘Main Dashboard of Metrics’ evidence the
Strategic Action of ‘Tenants are provided with a property that meets the ‘Property Condition
Lettable Standard’:
Metric 38 – > 90% of properties met the Property Condition Lettable Standard at re-let; and
Metric 39 – > 90% Tenant satisfaction with the overall quality of their home.
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Public Benefit Entity
As a public benefit entity, the Association has applied the public benefit entity ‘PBE’ prefixed
paragraphs of FRS102.
The Board of Management’s Statement for Information to the Auditors
Board Members who held office at the date of approval of this Board Report confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge, there is no relevant audit information of which the Association’s
Auditors are unaware; and each Board Member has taken all necessary actions to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information, and to ensure the Association’s Auditors
are aware of that information.
By order of the Board of Management
Approved by the Board of Management on 23rd July 2020

and signed on its behalf by: …………………………………….
Lesley Robinson LLB Law
Board of Management Chairman

Note: This Report has been prepared incorporating the principles developed by the International
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) in considering how Lincs Rural has made the most of resources,
how it is achieving strategy, and creating value over the short, medium and long term. The Integrated
Strategic Report progresses the Board’s decision to implement greater clarity and detail to Stakeholders
using Integrated Thinking and Reporting.
As housing associations social impact is significant, the need to scale up the supply of new genuinely
affordable homes is clear. Investor interest is strong and growing. Integrated Strategic Report this year
has incorporated the new reporting frameworks being developed by the White Paper ‘UK SOCIAL
HOUSING: Building a sector Standard Approach for ESG Reporting’, which incorporates the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDG).
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Composition and organisation of the Association
Legal Status
The Association is registered with the Financial Conduct Authority, and as a ‘PreCommencement Society – Charitable (formerly I&P Society)’ under the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. The Association is also registered with the Regulator
of Social Housing as a ‘Register Provider’.
Principal Activities
The Association’s principal activities are the development and management of social housing
in rural communities.
Business Review
The total comprehensive income for the year is £421,122 (2018/2019 £519,451) on a turnover
of £2.2 million (2018/2019 £2.4 Million).
Principal Financial Policies
All surpluses generated by the Association are reinvested in order to maintain properties in
good condition, provide high quality services, and develop new rural affordable housing stock.
Accumulated reserves are reinvested in existing housing properties and developing new
housing assets, and are not therefore represented by cash balances. The Board have not
designated specific reserves for future major repair liabilities. Although these commitments do
exist, they are recognised in the organisation’s long-term business plan forecasts, using
information from stock condition surveys. The cycle of stock condition surveying continued
during the year, together with annual independent verification of stock condition, achieving the
Strategic Action in the Association’s Main Dashboard of Metrics, to achieve the Corporate
Strategy Strategic Objective of being ‘Maintaining Homes to a good standard’.
The Association’s Treasury Management Policy has been reviewed by the Board. The aim is
to maintain low cash balances to maximise the use of resources, without compromising the
organisation’s ability to meet obligations as they become due. The Association will maintain
sufficient liquid funds to service short, medium and long-term finance.
The Association’s Statement of Financial Position illustrates that at 31 March 2020 the
organisation had net current assets of £747k (2018/2019 £541k). Current liabilities were £754k
(2018/2019 £762k).
Fixed Assets
Changes to the fixed assets are set out in Note 11 to the Financial Statements.
Board Membership
Membership to 31st March 2020 is detailed on page 4.
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Governance
The Association resolved on 19th March 2015 to adopt the National Housing Federation’s
‘Code of Governance, entitled ‘Promoting board excellence for housing associations (2015
Edition)’ as detailed.
Employee Involvement
The Association maintains systems to provide employees with relevant information on matters
of concern to them. These include regular team meetings, annual appraisals and direct contact
with the Board. However, the benefit of being a small organisation is that Staff are key
employees, and are involved in the governance / management process. This naturally
provides Staff involvement in strategic issues.
Employment of Disabled Persons
The Association is committed to employing and engaging people with disabilities, as defined
by the Disabled Persons (Employment) Act by:
(a) Guaranteeing to interview people with disabilities who meet the minimum criteria for job
vacancies;
(b) Consulting disabled employees about how they can develop and use their abilities at work;
(c) Develop key employees’ awareness of disability and employment; and
(d) Review relevant achievements in meeting these commitments.
Risk Management [C43]
The Association recognises the importance of risk management and internal controls in
running a complex business. The specific processes in place are detailed in the internal
controls section below.
Insurance
For the financial year 2019/20 Board Member’s Directors and Officers Liability Insurance was
facilitated through JLT Speciality Limited, together with comprehensive insurance policy cover
for other areas of the business.
Social and Environmental Responsibility
The Association is committed to facilitate wider improvements in the communities that it
serves. This includes working with other agencies to address issues such as anti-social
behaviour and social enterprise.
Going Concern
It is the opinion of the Board that the Association has a reasonable expectation of having
resources to continue to operate for the foreseeable future. It continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the Association’s financial statements.
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Board of Management’s Statement on Internal Controls
The Board of Management (the Board) is ultimately responsible for the Association’s system
of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board, however, acknowledges that the system of internal controls is designed to manage
rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve the organisation’s objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
In meeting its responsibilities, the Board uses a risk-based approach to internal controls,
based on guidance and best practice within the sector. The framework adopted by the Board
in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control included:
The Control Environment:
(a) During the financial year 2019/2020 the Board operated in accordance with the National
Housing Federation’s (NHF) Code of Governance (the Code) ‘Promoting board excellence
for housing associations (2015 edition)’, which had been adopted by the Association on
19 March 2015. The Board assessed compliance with the Code on 12 March 2020 and
found there was one areas of reportable non-compliance for disclosure in the Annual
Report, as detailed on page 18;
(b) The Association has conducted business during the financial year 2019/20 in accordance
with the Regulator of Social Housing’s requirements of the Regulator’s Regulatory
Framework for Social Housing in England from the 1 April 2015. The Board self-assessed
compliance with the Standards at the Board meeting on 12 March 2020 [C45];
(c) A specific audit on Governance was carried out in 2019/20 with a substantial assurance
internal audit opinion. The report concluded ‘There is an appropriate and comprehensive
control framework in place in respect of the Association’s Governance and Risk
Management arrangements and we have found the controls are being applied adequately
and effectively’;
(d) Assessment by the Board on 12 March 2020 concluded that the control environment was
ethical, with integrity, ensuring accountability, openness and effective control. There was
role clarity for the Board, senior management and staff, and effective structures in place.
1.

Risk Assessment [C43]:
(a) Risk is regularly reviewed at Board, Audit Committee and Leadership Team meetings and
specifically at Workshops during the Governance Cycle. In addition, the Chief Executive
provides regular updates to the Board on significant changes affecting key risks;
(b) A specific review of Risk Management was not undertaken in 2019/20 by RSM;
(c) The Association has continued to manage risk efficiently and effectively during 2019/20
with procedures for ensuring appropriate corrective action is taken in respect of any
material internal control issues; and
(d) In accordance with the Regulator’s Governance and Viability Standard the Association
continues to maintain an accurate and current Asset and Liability Register, and regularly
subjects the Business Plan to multiple variant stress testing.
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2.

Control Activities:
(a) The Board, Executive and staff have operated throughout the year in general compliance
with control activities, legislation, and regulation. There were no control failures entered
into the ‘Control Failure Register’ during the financial year, and there are no breaches
pending;
(b) Significant review of Policies has been progressed to improve internal control;
(c) Management have complied with ‘Delegated Authorities’;
(d) Internal Audit Services Contract have been provided by RSM Risk Assurance Services
LLP’s for the last seven years. The Board re-negotiated the contract with RSM in 2016 and
on 15 December 2016 the Board approved the extension to (RSM) contract for three years,
with an option for a further two years. The Board took account of the potential conflict of
interest and lack of scrutiny for an extended period. Sufficient assurance however was
achieved that scrutiny would continue during the extended contract [C37]. Control activities
have functioned correctly within the organisation during 2019/2020 confirmed by the
Internal Auditor’s report to the Audit Committee on 23 April 2020. The audits completed
and outcomes are as follows:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Corporate Governance – substantial assurance;
Key Financial Controls – substantial assurance;
Safeguarding – substantial assurance;
Health and Safety Tenant Safety – reasonable assurance
Follow Up – Good Progress (16 out of 19 actions completed); and
Continuous Assurance visits – no formal opinion.

(e) RSM Annual Internal Audit report 2019/2020 provides further assurance for the financial
year. RSM’s Head of Internal Audit’s opinion 2019/2020 states: ‘The organisation has an
adequate and effective control framework for risk management, governance, and internal
control. However, our work has identified further enhancements to the framework of risk
management, governance and internal control to ensure that it remains adequate and
effective’. The Auditor had stated that overall, it was a very positive annual opinion, with
an adequate and effective framework in place. Areas for improvement had been identified
and management actions discussed and agreed; and
(f) Beever and Struthers have been the Association’s External Auditors for over twenty years.
The external audit services as re-tendered in 2012 with Beever and Struthers tender being
successful. The Board re-negotiated the contract with RSM in 2016 and on 15 December
2016 the Board approved the extension to (RSM) contract for three years, with an option
for a further two years. The contract was formulated with Beever and Struthers, on the
basis that a new Audit Partner was responsible for the Association’s audit [C37].
3.

Information and Communications:
(a) Predetermined Board and Committee meetings were serviced with relevant and timely
information for well informed decision making; and
(b) Board members are provided with information through intranet systems enabling real time
access to performance data, risk assessment and other issues relevant to well-informed
governance activity and responsibility.
49

DocuSign Envelope ID: C71FF1CC-E0D6-4637-9B69-B7D4390E3975

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT for the year ending 31 March 2020

4.

Monitoring:
(a) The Board regularly monitors key performance indicators through the ‘Operational
Dashboard’ referenced at Board meetings;
(b) The internal computerised management system ensures up-to-date and accurate
information to control operations effectively;
(c) The Board is kept fully appraised of the evolving operating environment regularly;
(d) Value for Money Metrics have been monitored by the Board during the financial year and
are included within this Annual Report; and
(e) There were no losses from fraudulent activity.

5.

Conclusion:
(a) The Board has received the Chief Executive’s ‘Annual Internal Controls Assurance Report’;
has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control, and
has taken account of any changes required to maintain the effectiveness of risk
management and control processes;
(b) The Board has completed a review for the year ending 31 March 2020 and is satisfied that
controls are in place and effective to ensure that the Association continues to be a wellgoverned, well-managed and a viable organisation; and
(c) The Board confirms there is an on-going process for identifying, evaluating, and managing
the significant risks faced by the Association. This has been in place for the year under
review, and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and accounts, and is regularly
reviewed.
Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board
The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and registered social housing
legislation require the Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year which
provide a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association
Limited, and of the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period of account.
In preparing those financial statements, the Board is required to:
(a) Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
(b) Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
(c) State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
(d) Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Association will continue in business.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Association and to enable them
to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Society Act 2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for
Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. It has general responsibility for taking
reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the Association and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities.
Auditors
A resolution to re-appoint Beever and Struthers as External Auditors will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting on 10 September 2020.
By order of the Board of Management
Approved by the Board of Management on 23 July 2020

and signed on its behalf by: …………………………………….
Lesley Robinson LLB Law
Chairman of the Board of Management
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Lincolnshire Rural Housing
Association
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association “the
Association” for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in
Reserves, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements including a
summary of significant accounting policies .The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion, the financial statements:


give a true and fair view of the state of the Association’s affairs as at 31 March 2020
and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended;



have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and



have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and
the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report to you in respect of the following matters in relation to which the
ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:


the Board of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or



the Board of Management has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Association’s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve
months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board of Management is
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Cooperative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our
opinion:



a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained; or



the Association has not kept proper accounting records; or



the financial statements are not in agreement with the books of account; or



we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of the Board of Management
As explained more fully in the Statement of Board of Management’s Responsibilities set out
on page 50, the Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the Board of Management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Management are responsible for assessing
the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Management either intend to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

53

DocuSign Envelope ID: C71FF1CC-E0D6-4637-9B69-B7D4390E3975

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Council’s web-site at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Association, in accordance with section 87 of the Co-operative
and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Association those matters we are required to state to it in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Association for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Beever and Struthers, Statutory Auditor
St George’s House
215/219 Chester Road
Manchester
M15 4JE
Date: 19 August 2020

54

DocuSign Envelope ID: C71FF1CC-E0D6-4637-9B69-B7D4390E3975

Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association Ltd
6.1 – Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 31 March 2020
Notes
Turnover

2

2020
£
2,212,840

Operating Costs

2

(1,596,585)

(1,546,534)

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets

5

196,766

74,440

813,021

902,772

1,732

842

(361,417)

(371,725)

453,336

531,889

(32,214)

(12,438)

421,122

519,451

Operating Surplus
Interest receivable
Interest payable and similar charges

6

Surplus before tax
Taxation

8

Total comprehensive income for the year

2019
£
2,374,866

Other comprehensive income
Initial recognition of multi-employer defined
benefit scheme

10

-

(169,000)

Actuarial losses in respect of pension scheme

10

288,000

(118,000)

709,122

232,451

Other comprehensive income for the year
after tax

All amounts relate to continuing activities.
The above surpluses are the historical cost surpluses.
The notes on pages 59 to 79 form an integral part of these accounts
The financial statements on pages 55 to 58 were approved by the Board of
Management for issue on 23 July 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

Board Member:……………………………………
Board Member:……………………………………
Secretary:…………………………………………..
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Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association Ltd
6.2 – Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2020
Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies
Act 2014 Reg. No 25276R
Notes
Tangible Fixed assets
Housing Properties
Other fixed assets
Current assets
Stock
Trade and other debtors
Cash at bank and in hand
Less Creditors
Amounts falling due within one year

2020

2019

£

£

11
11

23,370,878
186,533
23,557,411

23,674,811
183,112
23,857,923

13
14

15,692
150,472
1,335,394

54,082
149,925
1,099,469

1,501,558

1,303,476

15

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

(754,107)

(762,456)

747,451

541,020

24,304,862

24,398,943

Amounts falling due after more than one year

16

(17,178,006)

(17,697,334)

Provisions for liabilities
Pension – defined benefit liability
Other provisions

10
19

(254,000)
(26,126)

(564,000)
-

Total Net Assets

6,846,730

6,137,609

Reserves
Non-equity share capital
Income and expenditure reserve

41
6,846,689

42
6,137,567

6,846,730

6,137,609

Total Reserves

The notes on pages 59 to 79 form an integral part of these accounts
The financial statements on pages 55 to 58 were approved by the Board of
Management for issue on 23 July 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:
Board Member:……………………………………

Board Member:……………………………………
Secretary:…………………………………………..
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Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association Ltd
6.3 – Statement of Changes in Reserves
For the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Income and
Expenditure Reserve
£
Balance as at 1 April 2018

5,905,116

Total Comprehensive Income

519,451

Other Comprehensive Income

(287,000)

Balance at 31 March 2019

6,137,567

Total Comprehensive Income

421,122

Other Comprehensive Income

288,000

Balance at 31 March 2020

6,846,689

57

DocuSign Envelope ID: C71FF1CC-E0D6-4637-9B69-B7D4390E3975

Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association Ltd
6.4 – Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 March 2020
Notes

Year Ended
31 March 2020

Year Ended
31 March 2019

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Interest received

11

Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid
Issue of ordinary shares
Repayment of borrowings

20

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

1,136,112

1,332,566

(196,277)
1,732

(148,417)
842

941,567

1,184,991

(361,417)
(1)
(344,224)

(359,725)
(6)
(346,560)

235,925

478,700

1,099,469

620,769

1,335,394

1,099,469

Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Note i
Cash flow from operating activities

Year Ended
31 March 2020
£

Surplus for the year
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Decrease/(increase) in stock
Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset
transferred to stock
Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset disposal
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other debtors
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other creditors
(Decrease)/increase in provisions
(Decrease)/increase in SHPS pension liability
Adjustments for investing or financing
activities
Interest and financing costs
Interest received
Net cash generated from operating activities

58

11
17
13

Year Ended
31 March 2019
£

709,121

232,451

496,789
(130,235)
38,390

485,399
(138,547)
5,831

(547)
(53,218)
26,126
(310,000)

54,082
38,770
(22,589)
29,286
289,000

361,417
(1,732)

359,725
(842)

1,136,112

1,332,566
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6.4 – Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2020
Legal Status
Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association Limited is incorporated under the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and is registered with the Homes and Communities
Agency as a Registered Provider of Social Housing. Lincolnshire Rural Housing Association
Limited’s principal activity is to provide social housing.
1. Principal Accounting Policies
Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
Accounting Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) and the Statement of
Recommended Practice for registered housing providers: Housing SORP 2014.
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis of accounting and are
presented in sterling £ for the year ended 31 March 2020.
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with FRS102.
The Association meets the definition of a public benefit entity (PBE).
The accounting policy is set out on page 48. The financial statements have applied Financial
Reporting Exposure Draft 71 ‘Draft amendments to FRS102 The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland – Multi-employer defined benefit plans.
Going Concern
The Association’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which
assumes an ability to continue operating for the foreseeable future. No significant concerns
have been noted in the Business Plan updated for 2020/21 and therefore we consider it
appropriate to continue to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the
balance sheet date and the amounts reported for revenues and expenses during the year.
However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those
estimates. The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most
significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.
a) Development expenditure – The Association capitalises development expenditure in
accordance with the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on
management’s judgement that development scheme is confirmed, usually when Board
approval has taken place including access to appropriate funding. In determining whether a
project is likely to cease, management monitors the development and considers if changes
have occurred that result in impairment.
b) Categorisation of housing properties – The Association has undertaken a detailed review
of the intended use of all housing properties. In determining the intended use, the Association
has considered if the asset is held for social benefit or to earn commercial rentals. The
Association has determined that all properties held are for social benefit.
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6.4 – Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2020
c) Pension and other post-employment benefits – The cost of defined benefit pension plans
and other post-employment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases,
mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the
underlying assumptions and the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject
to significant uncertainty. The Association uses the SHPS online tool for the calculation and
consider the discount rate used to ensure it is within an acceptable range to reflect the market
yields at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds.
Other key sources of estimation and assumptions:
a) Tangible fixed assets – Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking
into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual
values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation, product life cycles and
maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider
issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal
values.
b) Impairment of non-financial assets
Properties are reviewed for impairment annually, and where housing properties have
suffered a permanent diminution in value, the fall in value is recognised after taking account
of any related capital grants.
No impairment triggers were identified in the reporting period.
c) Accounting for the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS)
The Board’s view, considering the guidance issued in FRED 71 and guidance issued by the
National Housing Federation, is that the difference between the deficit funding agreement
previously recognised in relation to SHPS, and the net defined benefit deficit, should be
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The relevant date to apply the adjustment is
judged to be 1 April 2018, as TPT Retirement Solutions does not have data to provide
sufficient information before the date 31 March 2018.
d) Turnover and revenue recognition
Turnover represents rental income receivable, amortised capital grant, income from the sale
of shared ownership properties and income generated from photovoltaics.
Rental income is recognised when the property is available for let, net of voids. Income from
sales is recognised on legal completion. Photovoltaic income is recognised in relation to the
period it was generated.
e) Service Charges
Service charge income and costs are recognised on an accruals basis. The Association
operates fixed service charges on a scheme by scheme basis in full consultation with tenants.
f) Loan interest costs
Loan interest costs are calculated using the effective interest method of the difference
between the loan amount at initial recognition and amount of maturity of the related loan.
g) Loan finance issue costs
Loans are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at the amount of the net proceeds
after issue, plus increases to account for any subsequent amounts amortised. Where loans
are redeemed during the year, any redemption penalty and any connected loan finance issue
costs are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income account in the year in which
the redemption took place.
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h) Taxation
The Association had charitable status during the period and it is not liable to Corporation
Tax on its charitable activities. The Society is subject to Corporation Tax on non-charitable
activities which include income from photovoltaic panels.
i)

Deferred Tax
Full provision is made for deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from timing differences
between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and recognition in
the tax computation.
A net deferred tax asset is recognised only if it can be regarded as more likely than not that
there will be suitable tax profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing
differences can be deducted.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates expected to be effective at
the time the timing differences are expected to reverse.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

j)

Value Added Tax
The Association is not registered for VAT. All amounts disclosed in the financial statements
are inclusive of VAT unless otherwise stated.

k) Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Where a housing property comprises two or more major components with substantially
different useful economic lives (UELs), each component is accounted for separately and
depreciated over its individual UEL. Expenditure relating to subsequent replacement or
renewal of components is capitalised as incurred.
The association depreciates freehold housing properties by component on a straight-line
basis over the estimated UELs of the component categories.
The useful economic lives for identified components are as follows:
Component
Boiler
Kitchen
Photovoltaics
Windows
Doors
Bathroom
Heating
Electrical
Roof
Structure

Years
15
20
25
30
30
30
30
30
60
100
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The Association depreciates housing properties held on long term leases in the same manner
as freehold properties, except where the unexpired lease term is shorter than the longest
component life envisaged, in which case the unexpired term of the lease is adopted as the
useful economic life of the relevant component category.
Depreciation is charged on other tangible assets on a straight-line basis using the rates as
follows:
Office
Vehicle
Computers, Tools and Office Equipment
Office furniture and equipment
Computer equipment
l)

2.00%
25.00%
20.00%
25.00%

Shared ownership properties
The costs of shared ownership properties are split between current and fixed assets on the
basis of the first tranche portion. The first tranche portion is accounted for as a current
asset and the sale proceeds shown in turnover. The remaining element of the shared
ownership property is accounted for as a fixed asset and subsequent sales treated as
property sales in operating profit. Shared ownership properties are not depreciated due to
the high residual value.
Grants received for shared ownership properties are accounted for using the accrual model
and recognised in income on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the asset.

m) Capitalisation of interest and administration costs
Interest on loans financing development is not capitalised.
Administration costs relating to development activities are capitalised only to the extent that
they are incremental to the development process and directly attributable to bringing the
property to their intended use.
n) Short-term debtors and creditors
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within one year
are recorded at transaction price.
o) Social Housing and Other Grants
Where developments have been financed wholly or partly by social housing and other grants,
the amount of the grant received has been included as deferred income and recognised in
Turnover over the estimated useful life of the associated asset structure, under the accruals
model.
When Social Housing Grant (SHG) in respect of housing properties in the course of
construction exceeds the total cost to date of those housing properties, the excess is shown
as a current liability.
SHG must be recycled by the Association under certain conditions, if a property is sold, or if
another relevant event takes place. However, SHG may have to be repaid if certain
conditions are not met. If grant is not required to be recycled or repaid, any unamortised grant
is recognised as turnover. In certain circumstances, SHG may be repayable, and, in that
event, is a subordinated unsecured repayable debt.
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p) Retirement benefits
The cost of providing retirement pensions and related benefits is charged to administration
expenses and then allocated to each of the Association’s departments over the periods
benefiting from the employees’ services.
The Association participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (‘SHPS’), a defined
benefit multiemployer pension scheme administered by TPT Retirement Solutions (‘TPT’).
Historically, TPT has not been able to provide sufficient information for each social
landlord’s share of SHPS to allow defined benefit accounting to be applied. Instead, in
accordance with FRS 102 paragraphs 28.11 and 28.11A and Housing SORP paragraphs
15.9 to 15.12, SHPS has been accounted for as a defined contribution scheme and
recognised a liability for the present value of the landlord’s deficit funding agreement.
Following changes made to systems and processes by TPT, sufficient information is now
available for SHPS. In January 2019, the Financial Reporting Council issued FRD71 (‘Draft
amendments to FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland – Multi-employer defined benefit plans.’) which provides proposed
changes to FRS 102 on this issue.
Consistent with the guidance in FRED 71 paragraph 4 (FRS 102 paragraph 28.11B), the
difference between the deficit funding liability and the net defined benefit deficit for SHPS
has been recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. This constitutes a change in
accounting policy. Further disclosures in this area are included in note 9.
q) Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at transaction price initially, plus, in the
case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial
liability.
At the end of each reporting period, financial instruments are measured as follows, without
any deduction for transaction costs the entity may incur on sale or other disposal:
Debt instruments that meet the conditions in paragraph 11.8(b) of FRS102 are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, except where the arrangement constitutes
a financing transaction. In this case the debt instrument is measured at the present value of
the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt.
Financial instruments held by the Association are classified as: Financial assets such as
cash, current asset investments and receivables are classified as loans and receivables and
held at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Financial liabilities such as loans
are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

63

DocuSign Envelope ID: C71FF1CC-E0D6-4637-9B69-B7D4390E3975

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2020
2.

Turnover, Operating Expenditure and Operating Surplus
2020

Social Housing Lettings
Other Social Housing Activities:
First tranche low cost home
ownership sales
Development costs

Other

TOTAL

Turnover

Cost of
Sales

£
2,086,603

£

Operating
Expenditure

-

-

-

2,086,603

-

£
(1,513,201)

Operating
Surplus /
(Deficit)
£
573,402

(73,229)
(1,586,430)

(73,229)
500,173

(10,155)

116,082

(1,596,585)

616,255

126,237

2,212,840

-

2019

Social Housing Lettings
Other Social Housing Activities:
First tranche low cost home
ownership sales
Development costs

Other

TOTAL

Turnover

Cost of
Sales

£
2,102,759

£

Operating
Expenditure

-

95,000

(66,972)

2,197,759

(66,972)

177,107

2,374,866

(66,972)

64

£
(1,405,690)

Operating
Surplus /
(Deficit)
£
697,069

(66,206)
(1,471,896)

28,028
(66,206)
658,891

(7,666)

169,441

(1,479,562)

828,332
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3.

Turnover and Operating Expenditure from Social Housing Lettings
General
Needs
Housing
£

Shared
Ownership

Total
2020

£

£

Total
2019
£

Income
Rent receivable net of identifiable
service charges and net of voids
Service charge income

1,838,597
19,612

87,497 1,926,094 1,941,481
3,659
23,271
22,731

Net rents receivable

1,858,209

91,156 1,949,365 1,964,212

Amortised government grants
Total Turnover from Social Housing
Lettings

Operating Expenditure
Management
Service charge costs
Routine maintenance
Planned maintenance
Major repairs expenditure
Bad debts
Depreciation of Housing Properties
Total operating expenditure on
Social Housing Lettings

Operating Surplus On Social
Housing Lettings

Void Losses

133,675

1,991,884

361,948
40,047
458,821
89,779
76,344
246
458,512

1,485,697

4,632

138,307

138,547
-

95,788 2,087,672 2,102,759

25,182
2,322
-

387,130
42,369
458,821
89,779
76,344
246
458,512

392,692
39,796
380,109
51,296
84,709
2,932
454,156

27,504 1,513,201 1,405,690

505,118

68,284

573,402

697,069

1,069

-

1,069

1,548

The expenditure figures include charges relating to the pension deficit:Service charge costs
2020: -£ 1,050
2019: -£ 300
Management
2020: -£19,250
2019: -£ 5,500
Routine Maintenance
2020: -£ 8,750
2019: -£ 2,500
Planned Maintenance
2020: -£ 2,800
2019: -£ 800
Other
2020: -£ 3,150
2019: -£ 900
Total
2020: -£35,000
2019: -£10,000
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4.

Accommodation owned, managed and in development
2020
2019
No of properties
No of properties
Owned
Managed Owned
Managed

Under management at end of year:
General needs housing
Shared Ownership

5.

400
28

-

400
29

-

428

-

429

-

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (fixed assets)

Proceeds of sales
Less: Cost of Sales

6.

Property
Sales
£
260,000
(65,734)

Others

Total

£
2,500

£
262,500
(65,734)

194,266

2,500

196,766

Interest payable and financing costs on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

On loans repayable within five years
On loans wholly or partly repayable in more
than five years
On defined benefit pension scheme

7.

2020
£
9,701

2019
£
12,797

338,716
13,000

346,928
12,000

361,417

371,725

Surplus/(Deficit) on ordinary activities
2020
£

2019
£

6,500

5,995

Depreciation of housing properties

458,512

454,156

Depreciation of other fixed assets

38,277

31,243

(130,235)

(138,547)

The operating surplus is stated after charging/(crediting):
Auditors remuneration (excluding VAT)
In their capacity as auditors

Amortisation of Government Grants
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8.

Tax on Surplus on ordinary activities
(a) Analysis of the charge in the period
The tax charge on the surplus on ordinary activities for the year was as follows:
2020
£
Current tax:
UK Corporation Tax charge for the year
Under/(over) provision in previous years
Total current tax

2019
£

6,088
0
6,088

12,438
0
12,438

Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences

26,126

-

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities

32,214

12,438

453,336

533,889

86,134

101,439

(81,034)

(86,850)

988

(1,663)

Utilisation of losses

0

(488)

Prior Year adjustment

0

0

26,126

0

32,214

12,438

Deferred tax provision

2020

2019

Deferred tax liability

26,126

27,115

(b) Factors affecting the tax charge for the period
Surplus on ordinary activities before tax
Surplus on ordinary activities multiplied by
standard rate
of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2019:19%)
Effects of:
Charitable activities not chargeable to tax
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation

Deferred Tax
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9.

Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Key management personnel are defined as the members of the Board, the Chief Executive, Operations
Manager and Head of Finance or equivalent. Board members are not remunerated.
2020
£

2019
£

The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by
executive Directors

107,037

101,143

The emoluments paid to the highest paid Director
excluding pension contributions

94,530

91,638

Pensions cost for current directors for:
Services as a director
Total key management personnel remuneration

18,785

14,491

202,346

192,676

The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the pension scheme. The pension scheme is a final
salary scheme funded by annual contributions by the employer and employee. No enhanced or special
terms apply. There are no additional pension arrangements. A contribution by the RP of £9,505 (2018:
£9,205) was paid in addition to the personal contributions of the Chief Executive.

9. Employee Information
2020
Number

2019
Number

8.74
3.21

8.62
3.02

£

£

The average weekly number of persons employed
during the year expressed in full time equivalents (35 hours
per week) was:
Office Staff
Direct Labour Operatives
Staff Costs (for the above persons)
Wages and salaries
Employers National Insurance Costs
Other pension costs

414,320
39,788
97,901

395,874
38,368
74,188

552,009

508,430

Aggregate number of full time equivalent staff whose remuneration exceeded £60,000 in the period:
2020
1

£60,000 to £69,999
£70,000 to £79,999
£80,000 to £89,999
£90,000 to £99,999
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10.

Pension

Social Housing Pension Scheme
The Association participates in one scheme, the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS). SHPS is a
multi-employer pension scheme administered by TPT Retirement Solutions (TPT). The accounting policy
in relation to SHPS is set out on page 60.
Principal Actuarial Assumptions
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2020.
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 31 MARCH 2019 TO 31 MARCH 2020
EMPLOYER: E3716 - LINCOLNSHIRE RURAL HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
PLAN: SOCIAL HOUSING PENSION SCHEME
Fair value of plan assets, present value of defined benefit obligation, and defined benefit
asset (liability)
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(£000s)

(£000s)

Fair value of plan assets

2,021

1,834

Present value of defined benefit obligation

2,275

2,398

Surplus (deficit) in plan

(254)

(564)

-

-

(254)

(564)

-

-

(254)

(564)

Unrecognised surplus
Defined benefit asset (liability) to be
recognised
Deferred tax
Net defined benefit asset (liability) to be
recognised

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligation

Period from 31 March 2019
to 31 March 2020 (£000s)
Defined benefit obligation at start of period
Current service cost
Expenses
Interest expense
Member contributions
Actuarial losses (gains) due to scheme
experience
Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in demographic
assumptions
Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in financial
assumptions
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2,398
56
3
56
22
85
(23)
(283)
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Benefits paid and expenses
Liabilities acquired in a business
combination
Liabilities extinguished on settlements

(39)
-

Losses (gains) on curtailments

-

Losses (gains) due to benefit changes

-

Exchange rate changes

-

Defined benefit obligation at end of period

2,275

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets
Period from 31 March 2019
to 31 March 2020
(£000s)
Fair value of plan assets at start of period

1,834

Interest income
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
interest income) - gain (loss)
Employer contributions
Member contributions

43
67
94
22

Benefits paid and expenses

(39)

Assets acquired in a business combination

-

Assets distributed on settlements

-

Exchange rate changes

-

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

2,021

The actual return on plan assets (including any changes in share of assets) over the period from
31 March 2019 to 31 March 2020 was £110,000.

Defined benefit costs recognised in statement of comprehensive income (SOCI)
Period from
31 March 2019 to
31 March 2020
(£000s)
Current service cost

56

Expenses

3

Net interest expense

13

Losses (gains) on business combinations

-

Losses (gains) on settlements

-

Losses (gains) on curtailments

-

Losses (gains) due to benefit changes
Defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of
Comprehensive Income (SoCI)

70
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Defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)
Period from
31 March 2019 to
31 March 2020
(£000s)
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest cost) - gain (loss)

67

Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities - gain
(loss)

(85)

Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying
the present value of the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss)

23

Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the
present value of the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss)

283

Total actuarial gains and losses (before restriction due to some
of the surplus not being recognisable) - gain (loss)

288

Effects of changes in the amount of surplus that is not
recoverable (excluding amounts included in net interest cost) gain (loss)

-

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - gain
(loss)

288

Assets
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

(£000s)

(£000s)

Global Equity
Absolute Return
Distressed Opportunities
Credit Relative Value
Alternative Risk Premia
Fund of Hedge Funds
Emerging Markets Debt
Risk Sharing
Insurance-Linked Securities
Property
Infrastructure
Private Debt
Opportunistic Illiquid Credit
Corporate Bond Fund
Liquid Credit
Long Lease Property
Secured Income
Over 15 Year Gilts
Index Linked All Stock Gilts
Liability Driven Investment
Net Current Assets
Total assets

296
105
39
55
141
1
61
68
62
45
150
41
49
115
1
35
77
671
9
2,021
71

308
159
33
34
106
8
63
55
53
41
96
25
86
27
66
670
4
1,834
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None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the
employer’s own financial instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the
employer.
Key Assumptions
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

% per annum

% per annum

Discount Rate

2.39%

2.29%

Inflation (RPI)

2.65%

3.30%

Inflation (CPI)

1.65%

2.30%

Salary Growth

2.65%
75% of
maximum
allowance

3.30%

Allowance for commutation of pension for
cash at retirement

75% of maximum allowance

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2020 imply the following life expectancies:

Life expectancy at age 65
(Years)
Male retiring in 2020

21.5

Female retiring in 2020

23.3

Male retiring in 2040

22.9

Female retiring in 2040

24.5

72

DocuSign Envelope ID: C71FF1CC-E0D6-4637-9B69-B7D4390E3975

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2020

11. Tangible Fixed Assets
Housing Properties
Housing
Properties
Completed

Cost
At start of the year
Additions
Disposals
Transfer from SO to GN
At end of the year
Depreciation and Impairment
At start of the year
Charge for the year
Disposals
Transfer to stock
At end of the year

Shared
Ownership
Properties
Completed

Other Fixed Assets

Total
Housing
Properties

£
29,731,886
154,579
(47,999)
(-)
29,838,466

£
164,874
164,874

£
100,672
29,256
(21,401)
108,527

£
182,969
12,442
(2,527)
192,884

Total
Other
Fixed
Assets
only
£
448,515
41,698
(23,928)
466,285

75,860
3,298

44,364
23,577
(21,401)

145,179
11,402
(2,527)

265,403
38,277
(23,928)

-

6,057,075
458,512
(47,999)
(-)
6,467,588

79,158

46,540

154,054

279,752

21,701,509

1,669,369

23,370,878

85,716

61,987

38,830

186,533

21,942,990

1,731,821

23,674,811

89,014

56,308

37,790

183,112

£
28,000,065
154,579
(47,999)
62,452
28,169,097

£
1,731,821
-

6,057,075
458,512
(47,999)
(-)
6,467,588

-

Net book value at end of the
year
Net book value at start of the
year

(62,452)
1,669,369

Offices

Vehicle

Computers,
Tools and
Office
Equipment

The additions figure of £154,580 includes £121,580 for component replacements and £33,000 for property additions.
The disposals figure of £47,999 relates to component disposals.
The net book value of housing properties secured against the Association’s loans is £15,171,804 (2019: £15,378,654).
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12.Tangible Fixed Assets (continued)
Works to existing properties in the year:
2020
£

2019
£

-

-

121,580

82,264

92,579

52,096

214,159

134,360

Improvement works capitalised
Components capitalised
Amounts charged to expenditure for major
repairs
Total for year

Development administration costs capitalised in the year totalled £0 (2019:£0)
Housing Properties comprise:
Freeholds
Long leaseholds

2020
£

2019
£

20,070,842

20,327,049

3,300,037

3,347,761

23,370,879

23,674,810

The aggregate amount of interest and finance costs included in the cost of housing
properties in the year totalled £0 (2019: £0).
13.

Stock

General needs properties
Materials stock

14.

2020
£
-

2019
£
54,082

15,692

-

15,692

54,082

Trade and other debtors
Amounts falling due within one year
Rent arrears
Less: provision for bad debts
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income
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2020
£
41,613
(7,522)
44,009
72,372

2019
£
42,183
(8,941)
37,506
79,177

150,472

149,925
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15.

Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year

2020
£

2019
£

68,270
42,802
9,950
81,820
408,000
137,177
6,088

92,035
47,604
8,993
101,078
361,762
138,546
12,438

754,107

762,456

Amounts falling due after one year

2020
£

2019
£

Deferred Capital Grant (Note 17a)
Recycled Capital Grant (Note 17b)
Loans (Note 16b)
SHPS pension agreement plan

11,177,677
67,876
5,932,453
-

11,347,319
27,100
6,322,915
-

17,178,006

17,697,334

2020
£

2019
£

408,000
384,100
1,110,200
4,438,153
-

361,762
433,578
1,273,686
4,615,651
-

6,340,453

6,684,677

Rent in advance
Trade creditors
PAYE and National Insurance Contributions
Accruals and deferred income
Loan repayments in one year or less (Note 16b)
Deferred Capital Grant (Note 17a)
Corporation Tax

16a. Creditors

16b. Debt analysis
Loans repayable by instalments:

Within one year
In one year or more but less than two years
In two years or more but less than five years
In five years or more
Less: loan issue costs

These loans are secured by specific charges on the Association’s individual housing
properties and are repayable monthly or quarterly at varying rates of interest and are
due to be repaid between the years 2021 and 2050.
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16b. Debt analysis (continued)
The interest rate profile of the Association at 31 March 2020 was:

Total

Variable
rate
£k

£k

Instalment loans

17a.

6,340.5

Fixed
rate
£k

-

6,340.5

Weighted
average
rate %

4.5

Deferred Capital Grant
Housing
Properties
Completed

At start of the year
Released to
income
Recycled Capital
Grant
Disposal

Housing
Properties
Under
Construction

£
11,485,865

£
-

Shared
Ownership
Properties
Under
Construction
£
-

(138,307)

-

-

(32,704)
-

Total
Housing
Properties

£
11,485,865
(138,307)
(32,704)
-

At end of the year
11,314,854

-

-

11,314,854

Amount due to be released < 1 year

2020
£
137,177

2019
£
138,546

Amount due to be released > 1 year

11,177,677

11,347,319
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17b.

Recycled Capital Grant Fund
2020
£
27,100

At start of the year
Inputs to fund:
Grants recycled from deferred capital grants
Fund (Note 17a)
At end of the year

18. Analysis of changes in net debt

2019
£
-

40,776

27,100

67,876

27,100

At
Beginning
of the Year
£
1,099,469

Cash
Flows

Non-Cash
Movements

At End of
the Year

£
235,925

£
-

£
1,335,394

(361,762)

344,224

(390,462)

(408,000)

Housing Loans Due After One Year

(6,322,915)

-

390,462

(5,932,453)

At the end of the year

(5,585,208)

580,149

-

(5,005,059)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Housing Loans Due in One Year

19. Provision for liabilities and charges
At the start of the year
Deferred tax

2020
£
26,126

2019
£
-

At the end of the year

26,126

-

20.

Non-Equity Share Capital
2020
£

2019
£

Allotted Issued and Fully Paid
At start of the year
Issued during the year
Forfeited during the year

42
4
(5)

48
2
(8)

At the end of the year

41

42

The par value of each share is £1. The shares do not have a right to any dividend or distribution
in a winding-up, and are not redeemable. Each share has full voting rights.
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21. Capital Commitments

2020
£

2019
£

Capital expenditure that has been
authorised by the Board of
Management but has not been
provided for in the financial statements

1,076,907

1,076,907

These commitments are expected to
be financed within the next 24 months
with:
Cash resources

1,076,907

1,076,907

The above figures include the full cost of shared ownership properties contracted for.
22. Taxation Status
The Association has charitable status.
23. Contingent Liability
At the balance sheet date there were no known contingent liabilities.
24. Related Parties
The Association considers the following to be related parties:
The Board includes one tenant member who holds a tenancy agreement on normal terms and
cannot use their position to their advantage. Rent charged to the tenant board member was
£4,322 (2019: £4,669). There are no arrears on the tenancies at the reporting period end £NIL
(2019: £NIL).
Transactions with key management personnel and their close family, see note 8.
The Association paid expenses to Board Members in the year of £4,362 (2019: £5,389).

25. Grant and financial assistance
Social Housing
Grant 2020
£
The total accumulated government grant and financial
assistance received or receivable at 31 March:
Held as deferred capital grant
Recognised as income in Statement of Comprehensive
Income
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Social Housing
Grant 2019
£

11,314,854

11,485,865

2,541,425

2,411,190

13,856,279

13,897,055
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26. Financial Instruments
Total loan and credit facilities
The Association had total borrowing facilities of £6,340,453 (2019: £6,684,677) available at 31
March 2020, of which £NIL (2019: £NIL) were undrawn.
The Association had the following financial instruments:

Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost:
Rental debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Loans
Trade creditors
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2020
£

2019
£

85,623
1,335,394

79,689
1,099,463

1,421,017

1,179,152

6,340,453
42,802

6,684,677
47,604

6,383,255

6,732,281

